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€ARTER v. SKELTON.

Mr. MARRYAT opened the pleadings.—he stated thatthe
plaintiff In this case was in 1812, the first mate of the ship
Albion, belonging to Messrs., Wallis, Cooke, and Hammond, of
London, Merchants, and the defendant was the captain of the
said ship, bound on a voyage to the South Seas, in the whale
fishery, that this action was brought to recover damages sus-
tained by the plaintiff, by means of the defendant setting him
on shore and leaving him on the island of Celebes, in the
Indian ocean, whereby the said plaintiff was put to great
difficulty in reaching England, and was deprived of his share
oi one twenty-eighth part of the profit of the said voyage, as
agreed for in the articles entered into between himself and the
owners of the said vessel, which share would have amounted to
upwards of £600. The declaration concluded with stating the
whole amount of damage sustained by the plaintiff by this
conduct of the captain at £1000. To this the defendant had

pleaded the general issue, not guilty of the premises where-
upon issue was joined.

Mr. ArrorNEY GENERAL, May it please your lordship. Gen-
tlemen of the jury, the injury of which the present plaintiff com-
plains, appears in every point of view to be of a most serious
and important nature, whether we consider it as it respects the
sufferings of the individual and his pecuniary rights, or as it
respects the interest of those excellent men who are engaged
in our navigation and commerce. In either of these pomts of
view, I am persuaded, you will think this case well merits your
utmost attention, and that it will appear to be a cause of that
importance which I have stated. What I have further to state
must necessarily be very short, having a plain and intelligible
story to tell, and if I take a correct view of it I think it will be
unnecessary for me to make an inflamed statement of it to you.

We come here to obtain a civj&l recompense for an injury sus-
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tained by the plaintiff; and you, as British jurors, know well
how to appreciate the amount of that mjury. The plaintiff
having engaged to act as the mate of the ship Albion, with the
defendant, Captain Skelton, (having sailed with him once
before) to sail to the Southern Ocean upon the whale fishery,
I shall in the first place state to you the nature of that engage-
ment ; it was not that the mariners were to be paid at so much
per month, as in other cases, but in order to encourage them
iIn undergoing such dangers as are incident to these sort of
voyages, and to interest them in the concern, they act upon
shares,  The plaintiff’s share of the neat profits of this ad-
venture was to be one twenty-eighth part. They sailed upon
the voyage in question on the twenty-first of May, 1812, and
down to a certain day it is not alledged by the defendant that
the plaintiff had conducted himself otherwise than most excel-
lently and meritoriously. They arrived at a port called
Laverstoke, in the Southern Ocean, on the twenty-first of
October following, and sailed from thence on the fourth of
November, and soon afterwards were employed in catching
whales. On the first of December, the boat in which the plaintiff
was employed, was struck by a whale, which stove in her
planks, she consequently filled with water, so that the lives of
those within her were endangered ; the crew were immersed
in water for four hours, when another boat came to their relief ;
the crew were then removed into that boat, and the stoven

boat taken in tow, and at length they returned in security
to the ship; it was very dark, and the boat having two boat’s
crews and double tackle on board, and their being upon the

starboard side of the vessel several dead whales lashed, and
that side being the windward side, the plaintiff took the boat to
the larboard side, and part of the crew boarded from that side,
These whales had been taken and killed, and were laying there
till such time as they had an opportunity of taking their fins
and other parts that were useful in making a profit of by con-
verting them into oil and blubber. There were four whales lying
on the starboard side ‘waiting for such opportunity ; the people
in the boat which was stoven had been extremely harrassed all
that day, and it appeared to them that the side where these
whales were lying was that which one would not choose to
make with a boat in order to get up into the vessel; the
plaintify accordingly went upon the larboard side, when the
defendant called to him to go to the side where the whales
were lying, but in disobedience of that order, Carter, the
plaimtiff; with part of the erew boarded from the larboard side 3
this gave offence to the captain, and he remonstrated with the
- plaintiff on his disobeying the order, although it appeared that
the plaintiff had &i'te*ﬂj"%t}mbest; and 1t will be said that he
- conducted himself in'a very disrespectful manner towards the
captain, who flew nto a violent passion, and Pre-;rente:dil;fh:e rest
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of the boat’s crew from boarding on the same side, and com-
pelled them to go to the “windward., This circumstance
occasioned the conduct of the captain of which we complain,
it afterwards appeared that the defendant had hailed the boat,
and directed them to board f{rom the starboard side. This
order the plaintiff, from the boisterous state of: the weather, was
prevented hearing, and even if he had heard it, much difficulty
and danger would have attended the compliance, from the
cause before mentioned. Suppose all this were true to a cer-
tain extent, yet the person next in authority to the captain,
might surely under such circumstances, have been permitted to
exercise his judgment, as to whether he should go to the star-
board or to the larboard ; we might be disposed to say that
that side which was the least lumbered or encumbered was the
one most proper to go to; some men might for the sake of
shewing their authority, make an ill selection of the side of the
- ship, upon which an inferior officer should come. Having oot
~on board, the plaintiff was immediately assaulted by the de-
fendant, and assailed with the most improper language. The
plaintiff upon this occasion admits that he was not more than
man, and that some intemperate expressions escaped him, but
not such as were of great importance. What was the conduct
~of the captain ? He seized the plaintiff by the collar, and treated.
him with great personal violence, and ordered him off duty,
saying, ‘“he would do the business of the ship without the
assistance of the plaintiff, and directed him to retire to his
cabin.” Mr, Carter remained in this state until the seventh of
December, when the ship arrived at Kenia, in the island of
Celebes, a Dutch settlement, where it appears the captain
landed and prefered a charge against the plaintiff before the
Dutch resident, from whom he procured a letter to the plaintiff,
which induced him to go on shore, and then took an opportunity
of sailing without him, leaving bim in the most distressed and
miserable situation ; that island 1s not one of an entirely de-
-serted description, nor was it without a habitation, but it was
deserted to all his hopes and expectations ; it put an end to all
his most sanguine prospects, and removed him at a great dist-
ance from his native country, interdicted as it were from passing
over that ditch which lay between him and his home, inter-
dicted to embark on board that ship in which he had embarked
already all his means of prosperity; having, however, at last
got to Amboyne, he found his way to this country, and he this
day appeals to your justice to give him a suitable compensa-
tion for these injuries. Let us see what the condition of such
a man as this plaintiff is ; he is one who is entitled to share in
the profits of this adventure, and his share was one twenty-
eighth of about £16000. the neat profits of the adventure, which
would amount to £680. odd. Such was the situation of this
person arriving in this country. Is it not a most perilous
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sitnation in which such persons are placed, if the captain and
part owner (for the defendant is himself in both those charac-
ters) upon any alledged intemperate expressions under circums-
stances like these, at a time when they are worn down by
fatigue and accidents, and expecting lnstant death, is to treat
them with impunity in the injurious manner 1 have men-
tioned # My, Carter upon seeing these whales lying alongside
ready to be taken in at leisure, finds an opportunity of regain-
ing the vessel on the larboard side, and saving himself and his
men from farther peril; is it not then somewhat excusable, if by
any frailty of human nature he should resist by language, at
feast the violent opposition he met with from the defendant?

Is such a person for an imaginary indignity to be put on shore
by his captain in such an island ? it was little better than if he

had given him his bread and pitcher of water, and placed him
upon a solitary and- deserted bit of land, he could not well have
been in a worse situation than he was placed in this miserable
residence which had been given him by the captain; for that of
which be has been most infamously deprived, it is impossible
that you will not grant relief; what he asks‘at your hands is a
compensation for the injury he has sustained, and the sufferings
which the defendant’s conduet has inflicted upon him. The

case will not close 1 know upon my evidence; 1 am aware that

my learned friend (Mr. Park) has examined two persons upon
interrogatories ; [ wish most sincerely (but it is a wish which
Eerhaps I should not express as it cannot be accomplished, I

ave often before expressed it, but I never so strongly ex-
pressed it as I am disposed to do in this cause) that in our
courts of common law we might never again see a deposifion
upon interrogatories, but that we might have in the witnesses
box those on whose testimonies fou are to give judgment; I
say this as to depositions generally, but 1 say it to day as to
this cause, with a certainty of carrying every one with me. A
counsel for a plaintiff, when 2 witness is in the box, has a right
to ask questions upon the technical name of the voire dire, in
order to see whether he be a'competent witness for the defend-
ant, and upon this oceasion I may venture to say that if 1 had
these two witnesses here, not one of them could open his mouth,
except upon questions put as to the voire dire, and it would be
fmms that they could not be competent witnesses. My learned
friend appears surprised at hearing me state this, but perhaps
he has not read the depositions of these persons from begining
to end ; I attribute no neglect to him even if that should he
the case, knowing as I do, what loads of papers 1 have often
come into court with myself, without having been able to read
“every line in them, for we often get the general circumstances
from the opportunities we have of conversing with others who
know them more minutely than we can otherwise do ; indeed I

rever acquit myself so ably as when 1 merely converse with



7

my learned friends of the profession, who give me all the infor-
mation which they know : but in this case I have read these
depositions, and I make these observations now, as 1 am desir-
ous that instead of applying the antidote to the poison, we take
care that when the poison is poured into our minds, to be
cautious how we, receive it. As to the voire dire of these
depositions I know not how it is to be put, but I know that his
lordship will say these persons ought not to have been ex-
amined. There are two gentlemen, Michael Underwood and
Samuel Grew, who are to come here before you to day upon
paper, in order to give you an account of this transaction in the
Southern Ocean ; I should say if they were in court, you Mr.
Underwood was on hoard the ship Albion, and the defendant
made a bargain with Jrou and with Grew, that he would give

ou a hundred pounds each, if you would do the work, which
1e, the defendant, was to have had performed by the plaintiff’;
(here is the harpoon, and 1 should give them length of line,
and so by degrees bring in the answer) Mr. Underwood would
say that he did make such a bargain, and where is the harm
that he who had lost 2 man had got two to do the duty of that
man for a hundred pounds each? There might be none, but I
should further ask him have you been paid that sum? His
lordship might say to me, have you not been wasting time in
putting these first questions, for where is the harm ? Supnose
the captain had taken m two new hands at the island of
‘Celebes, where is the imputation to be cast upon for that 2
There would be no imputation on him or upon the witnesses,
for such a bargain having been entered into, but it does not
stop there ; it stands upon the depositions that they have not
been paid that money so bargained for, and that they are not
to.be paid for their work on board the ship; but I would make
it appear upon your quarter deck, that they are not to be paid
their hundred pounds unless this action be to be defeated hy
their testimony, and the defendant obtain a verdict. If I put
- such a question upon the voire dire to them, and if they said

we expect to be gaid the hundred pounds, but the payment is
postponed until this trial 18 over, in order to see whether our
deposition is to secure us the payment, for it depends upon
that event, then let them speak if they please as loud as Boreas
in his greatest rage, and let them state that all was stil] and
calm in the conduct of the captain, and that nothing was to
i'lfté.rrupt the plaintiff’ from hearing his captain in the hoeat, and
not only that, he abused the captain, but offered every indig-
ity to him ; let them state that in their judoment this ship was
‘not secure so long as this man remained on hoard, so that there
was a necessity for leaving him at the island of Celehes; what
‘would be the valae of all this, when you will find that a hun-
dred pounds is offered them for their services, but that it was
not to be paid as not being egrned, until the captain knew what
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effeet their testimony is to have upon your minds. That I
may not he supposed to be mistaken, il read you the words
of the depositions, of these persons, they say ¢that the said
defendant in the course of the voyage after the plaintiff had
ceased to perform his duy on boaiﬁ the. said ship as chief
mate, promised and agreed to give to these deponents (Michael
Underwood and Samuel Grew) one hundred peunds each, over
and beyond the share they were respectively entitled to by the
ship’s articles, if in addition to their other duties they would
severally fulfil the duties, and supply the places become vacant
by the absence of the chief mate, they being thereby required
to perforim the duties, not before allotted to them, after the
plaintiff’ had ceased to fulfil those duties. That they performed
those duties till the ship’s arrival in England. That the owners
by whom the said sum of one hundred pounds each was to have
!)een paid, refused to pay them the same on the ship’s arrival
in_England, and until the cause between the said defendant
and the said plaintiff had been tried.”  From this. it would
-appear that the defendant has intimated that unless he be
successful in resisting this demand of justice, this deponent
Michael Underwood, need not expect to receive his ope hun-
dred pounds ; here would have been a pretty kettle of fish (as
we are talking of fisheries) which these people would have
made of themselves if they had exposed tﬁemse] ves to a vive
voce examination., If my learned friend were to read in this
place such depositions as these until there were a scarcity of
stamps upon which they could be written, and be at a loss to
know what effect they would have upon your. minds, upon
finding one of them expressed in the manner I have stated,
and the other, namely, the deposition of Samuel Grew, stating,
 that defendant has intimated to deponent that unless he, the
defendant, shall be suecessful, he the deponent, cannot expect
the remuneration of one hundred pounds, or a less sum than
the one hundred pounds,” and again, “that deponent does not
expect that he shall receive the said one hundred pounds, or
any . part thereof.” 1f what? The expression is worth one
thousand pounds, in sonnding damages ; we of the profession,
‘and you men of education, in speaking of the termination of a
cause, would say, the plaintiff was uonsuited; the defendant
bad a verdict: the plaintiff was unsuccessful ;, or the cause was
decided in defendant’s favor. 1 believe 1 have exhausted
almost all the expressions that might in our usual forms be
used, but that is not the language of a partizan ; you have
-every one of you at your tongues end the phrase whicﬁ is used
here, we have been beat one would say ;3 now we will see what
ﬂmde onent says ;. he tells you that he “ does not expect that
?l?e:héfl' receive the said one _.h}mdrqd pounds, or any part
34 :;e 5 1if detendant be beat in this action, he deponent having
" ans of enforcing the payment thereof, 4%
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 Mr. Park. I suppose my learned friend means to read
these 'deptositicinbs, as__he comments thus 'upon'them,

Arroryey GENERAL. If I do not hear them read, then my
observations may be somewhat out of time, and I SRSt ova an

apology to make to you for having wasted your time, and also
a like apology to my learned friend, but that will be buta
slight one, for if I waste his _tlme.I also waste my own, __There
are many instances where it is said you are _ (.ilomg an injustice
not to bring on a trial even upon depositions, and in this
instance I cannot tell the reason why, but I'll venture to say,
when my learned friend came into court this morning, he did
intend to read these depositions, but now I have no doubt he
has altered his mind ; when I talked of examinations upon the
voire dire; I know that my learned friend is too good a judge
to let his tatterdemallions come here upon affidavits and depo-
sitions, or upon parchment, and far less to give viva voce evi-
dence under such ecircumstances, I should, I think, have a
little mistaken my duty to my client if I had thought it proper
that such depositions should be brought forward when such
observations were likely to be made apon them, and you would
think that I had not done my duty if I had allowed you to hear
it all read over, ‘if you had afterwards found that you had been
hearing all that these two incompetent witnesses had to state on
such an occasion, If; however, my learned friend should read
them, I will only ask you to wait until you hear the end of it ‘
but if this be all he has to bring before you, I rather suspect
that these will be the last words I shall have occasion to address
to you upon the subject. Upon the whole then, gentlemen, do
you not think that this is a cause of the last importance for the
plaintiff who now sues for justice ? The conduct of the defend-
ant cannot be justified ypon pretence of the necessity for that
striet subordination whiclil prevails on board a king’s ship, for
cven there where the strictest subordination is ahsai}utely'
necessary, no man would have been justified in doing more
than putting the individual, who he thought had disobeyed
him, off duty for a day or two; but here we find that merely
on account of some expressions which this sea captain imagined
to be contumelious, he inflicts upon him this harsh treatment
he is left behind upon an inhospitable island, _and cut off from
all his prospects of profit which he was entitled to from this
arduous and perilous voyage, and subjected to additional
miseries after all the previous hardships he had suffered, Tt is
for these losses, miseries, and hardships that he comes Lere this
day to seek redress at your hands, In administerine that
justice which is sought at your hands by this individual, you
will not fail to consider that the example made here of sych
tyrannical and overbearing treatment will afford a great additie

onal security to a valuable classB of His Majesty’s sub; ects, whao
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‘are’engaged i the navigation, commerce, dnd naval sérvice of
the country, by protecting them against such aggressions in
future, and warning those in power and authorify over them
against an overbearing oppression. - With these observations I
shall now proceed to ¢all my witnesses to prove the statement
of facts whieh I have made, and I am convinced that you will
not give less damages than what the full measure of justice

requires.
-7;-‘—-—-
- ARTICLES OF AGREEMENT.

Prter Wavrrrs, Davio Coox, and Joun Hammonp, all of
Lrump Street, in the city of London, merchants and managing
owners, Puivir Skevron, the master, and the officers, seamen,

- and mariners of the ship ArLsron of London, now bound from
the port of London, on a voyage to the Southern Ocean, tor Oil,
Fins, and Skins, usually called the Southern Whale #ishery,
and to return therewith to the said port of London, where the
said intendeéd voyage is to end, as follows : -

-~ . TuAT in consideration of the part share in proporiton
~ against each persons name hereunder written of the net and
clear proceeds of the cargo of oil, fins, and skins, which may be
procured and brought in the said ship or vessel to London, they,
the said master, oflicers, seamen, and mariners, do hereby se-
verally and respectively promise, declare, and agree to and with
the said owners to perform the above-mentioned voyage; and
that they shall and will do their duty, and strictly obey the orders
and commands of their superior officers, and conduct themselves
at all times and upon all occasions, and in all such portsor places
s the said ship or vessel may touch or call at ine_tké‘cow.s‘erqf
her saidvoyage, with sobriety, and as good and Sfaithful seamen
and mariners ought to do, as well on board the said ship or
vessel as in Ler boats and on the shore, and shall and will exert
themselves, and nse and exercise their best endeaqours to pro-
cure for the said ship or vessel a full cargo of oil, fins, and
skins, with the greatest expedition, and to conduct her there-
with in safety to the said port of London. ;S

" _TuAT no officer or seaman shall or will absent_..'--ﬁimsqlf_
from the said ship or vessel, or from the duties of the said ship

or vessel, without first obtaining a ticket of liberty from the
commanding officer for some certain time to be therein expressed,
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and:which on no pretence shall be exeeeded by the seamen or-
mariner, to whom the same shall be given or granted as

aforesaid.

Tuart the said master, officers, seamen, and mariners re-
spectively shall and will stand by the sard ship or vessel in all
rorts:and places, seas, and dangers, and at all times shall and
will use and exert thewr utmost skill and ability for the preser-
vation of the said ship or vessel, and her boats, tackle, apparel,
furniture, stores, and cargo, until she shall have arrived back
at ihe saird port of London, and her said cargo shall be there
discharged. - ' :

.+ o THAT no one of the said officers, seamen, or mariners
shall neglest or. refuse to do his duty by day or night, nor shall
go out of the said ship or vessel under any pretence, what-
soever, until the voyage is ended; and the ship discharged of
her cargo, without first obtaining such ticket of liberty asis
above-mentioned,

1uAT each and every ]awful command which the owners,
master, or commanding oflicer .of the said ship or vessel shall
think necessary to issue for the effectual government of the said

ship or vessel, and for suppressing immorality, and vice of all
kinds, shall be strictly comp ied with . D

_ Tuat no master, officer, seaman, or mariner, shall demand
o be entitled to his share of the net proceeds of the said cargo
of oil, fins, and skins, until the arrival of the said ship or vessel -
at London, and her said cargo of oil, fins, and skins, shall be
there delivered and sold, and the money for the same received
by the owner, nor unless he shall have well and truly performed
the above-mentioned voyage, according to the true intent and
meaning of these articles. |

THAT in ascertaining the net proceeds of the said cargo
-of oil, fins, and skins, there shall be charged a fair price for the
casks; which shall contain the oil, on board the said ship, and
also £2. 10s. per cwt. commission or agency, for the owners,upon
the gross amount of the cargo, and also all other usual customary
and incidental charges and expences whatsoever.

TuaT such of the said master, officers, seamen, and mari-
ners, who shall not return in the said ship or vesse]l with her
cargo to London, or who shall desert from the said ship or
vessel, or Who shall enter on board any of His Majesty’s sEips
or vessels of war without the consent, in writing, of the master
or commanding officer of ithe ship or vessel, or who shall break
-or neglect or refuse to perform these articles or any of the en-



i3

pagements or agreements herein contained in any respect, or
who shall plunder or embezzle, or wilfully destroy or make
away with any thing on board of or belonging to the said ship
or vessel, or belonging to the owners, master, officers, or erew
thereof, or any or either of them, shall hereby forfeit the whole
of his said part share or proportion of the said cargo of oil, fins;
and skins, and all his claim thereto, and all benefit and advans .
tage aceruing or to accrue to him therefrom; and also his chest;
clothes, bedding, and effects, which he shall have on board the
said ship or vessel, and all benefit from the said voyage, any
Jaw, custom, or usage to the contrary thereof in any wise not-
withstanding.

~ Tuar the said owners shall and may sell and dispose of

the said cargo of oil, fins, and skins; at any time or times he shall

think fit, either before or after the arrival of the said ship or
vessel at the said port of London.

TuAt the said ownérs shall and may deduct from each

persons share of the net proceeds of the said cargo of oil, fins;
and skins, such sum or sums of money as he may owe or be

indebted to the said owner, or the master, or commanding
officer of the said ship or vessel, for advance money, clothes, or

other necessaries, hired men, medicines, or on any other account.

. THAT whatever apparel, furniture, and stores, each! of
them the said master, officers, seamen, or mariners, shall receive

into his' charge belonging to the said ship or vessel or her
boats, shall be duly accounted for by him whenever required

by the said owners, or the master of the said ship or vessel, or
other commanding officer; and in case any thing shall be lost
or damaged through the carelessness or insufliciency of any of
them, it shall be made good by him or them by whose means it
may have happened, and deducted out of his or their share or
shares of the net proceeds of the said cargo of oil, fins, and skins,

THAT no one of them shall or will on the said ship or
vessel’s return home, and whilst in the river Thames, and her
cargo is delivering, on any pretence whatsoever go on shore to
gleep, but shall do their duty by day in discharging her cargo,
and keep such watch by night as the owner, master, or other
commanding officer shall think necessary 1or the preservation

of the said ship and cargo.

THAT in case the said ship or vessel shall obtain or take
or assist In obtaining or taking any prize or prizes of any hature
or kind whatsoever, the same shall be brought into account
and shared as oil under these articles, save and except that the
owners shall b: entitled to and have for his own use £5. per
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cent. commission or agency on the net proceeds of such prize oy -
prizes, and that each of the apprentices shall be entltle_ to one
third of a foremast man’s share of prize money, |

TuAT in case any dispute shall arise between the owners,
master, officers, or,any of the crew, respecting the voyage, or
the settlement of their accounts, the same shall be settled by
two arbitrators (one to be chosen by each disputing party) or
their umpire, whose award, order, or determination shall be
conclusive and binding, and the submission hereby made shall

and may be made a rule of any of His Majesty’s courts at
Westminster.

Tuar neither the master, or any officer, seaman, or
mariner who shall execute these articles shall have claim or

demand on or under any pretence whatsoever any monthly
wages or other wages, pay, or recompence whatsoever, for per-
torming the said intended voyage, or any service on board the

said ship or vessel, or her boats, or on shore, save and except

his share of the net proceeds to accrue to him under these
artieles.

And lastly~Tnar neither the master, or any officer,
seaman, or mariner ‘who shall or may execute these articles,
shall do or omit any act or thing during the said intended
voyage whereby the owners of the said sEip or vessel, or his
executors or administrators shall or may sustain any loss, mjury,
or damage.——In witness whereof the said parties have here-
unto voluntarily and without compulsion set their hands and

seals the day, month, and year set opposite to their respective
names. -

EVIDENCE FOR THE PLAINTIFF.

RicHARD Davis sworn (‘examined by Mr. Marryatt )

e Q. Did you go on the voyage in this vessel, the Albion$
. ; es. = = Fria Bt 5 4

Q. Did you sail soon after entering into your articles, in

the’ month 0£ ay, 181'2 ? | Ai YéS, we Baﬂed ﬂ'OIIl Gravesend
the same day. Bl il 5 B LRS TN SIEE s
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<~ Qi Were you on the 2ud of December last in the Indian
Ovect M Mo SR, .ot o 5 B i e

Q. Had you before that time killed'many fish ? A. No,
not a great many, that being the early part ofy the voyage. |
. Q. Was it in the month of December following that you
had reached the IndianOcean? = A. Yes. ,

Q. Where were you on the 2ndof December? ~A. Near
the Island Celebes. - |

| Q.-Was Carter, the first mate, out with the boat that
day? = A. Yes.

Q. Do you know whether any thing happened to his
boat ¢ A, Yes, it was stoved. ; |

Q. By what? A, By the stroke of a whale.

- . Q. Was he, by the assistance of another boat, and his
cempany brought back to the ship? -~ A. Yes. g

. Qu« How many hours afterwards? . A. I cannot exactly
say; but it was a considerable time.

Q. Upon his retarn on board were there any fish on
ej(tiher side-of the ship? . -A. Yes, there were, on the weather
o RS T | J |
Q. How many dead fish? A. There were three or
four, I am not sure, but I rather think there were three.

. Q. Did the boat’s crew go to the weather side or to the
leé side, thatis the larboard side?  A. To the lee quarter. -
Q. They got out of the stove boat into the other? = A.
Yeés, and they got up on the lee guarter.
.o Q. What happened then on the larboard side; was any
hing done or said by the captain? A, Yes, but 1 have reason
to believe that Carter did not hear it, as'the captain called to
hiin a: second time to come on board on the starboard side of
the vessel, when Mr. Carter said that the boat should go round
as soon as the people got'out of it,

Q. You say that Carier did not answer the first time, but
you think he dicf' not hear, and then the captain called a second
time, and Carter said that as soon as the people got out of the
boat he should go round to the side mentioned ; -was the boat
heavily laden with people, having two crews on board ¢  A. Yes.

Q. After some of the people had got out of the boat, then
some of the others with the boat went round to the other side ?
AR = e e

Q. Did Carter come in the first instance upon the side
where the fish were or not?  He came on the side where
there were no fish, - - | |

0. On what side was he required to go? A, On the
_-:_S_i\!;le_“l}’hﬁre th’ﬁ ﬁ%l} R snnany o o g
- Q. The larboard and the lee were the same in this in-
P A YO waiones b o on o L
"0 Did Carter. and tho Boats crew get out on the,side
‘where tiial% were no fish ?ﬂg& A Yes R an -

=
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Q. Did the remainder of the boat’s crew with the two
boats afterwards go round to the side where the fish were ?
A. There were a number of hands left in the boat to take her
round to the weather side or the fish side. =~ -

Q. Was she so taken round and the boats taken in after-
‘wards on the fish side? A, Yes sir. # W o
Q. (By Ellenborough, C. J.) Was it material'on whiéh
~side the people got on board from the boats?  A. I only
‘judge from my own opinion, that the lee side is generally the
most desirable and convenient for the people to get out of the
boat ; it is generally the side that the boat would go to; that
1s the general custom. (IR L s VGEE

Q. (By Mr. Marryatt) Was there any inconvenience fo
-the ship, or only to the persons getting out of the boat upon
that other side of the ship?  A. There was no inconveniénce
to the people in the ship on whichever side they got on board of
“her, the inconvenience would be to the persons getting out of
the boat into the ship, the lee side being most convenient, . .=

~ Q. On Carter coming on board did Captain Skelton sa
or do any thing to him? A, He was very angry and word’z
ensued ; he was angry that the boat did not go to the windward ;
Mr. Carter told him that as soon as the people got outitshould go.

Q. What did the captain say to Carter? A, The
%aﬁ tail;' was very angry respecting that, and ab'-usive*language
160 ace. = |

' pQ. ( By Ellenborough, C. J.) On what side did it becin ?
A. The captain began fo abuse him for not obeying his orders
in going round to the windward.

Q. (By Mr. Marryatt) Did the captain do any thing
to the plaintiff'? A. After some time the captain took him
by the collar, and Carter pushed him away, and he said don’t
go to heave me overboard as you have done the steward. =

Q. You were the steward in this voyage so that it did not
refer to you?  A. I'wasthe steward but it did not refer to me.

Q. What passed after that? ' “A. The captain told him
to go below, and that he should not do any more duty on board
‘the vessel. 3.

- - Q. What farther passed?  A. Nothing further passed ;
Carter went below and remained in his cabin till we got into
; Q. What was the next port or land you made ? A. The
Island of Celebes. | IP55% Sl :

"~ Q. How soon afterwards did youmake thatisland? “A. In
the course of three or four days afterwards. i

Q. Did the captain go on shore there? A, Yes sir.
| Q. Whilst he was on shore did any letter come on board
‘to the mate? =~ A, Yes, there was a boat which we supposed
‘came from the goverpor with two soldiers in her, with a letter
to Carter, | - i LR
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Q. What settlement is it 2 ( No Answer)

- My, Park., 1 understand it is one of those places taken
during the war from the Dutch, and a Dutch governor was there
at the time, and an English officer was over it; Neys was the
name of the governor. ' - 'H

Q. Was ita boat belonging to the island or to your ship %
A. It was a boat belonging to the island. Pt

Q. Did the mate in consequence thereof go on shore #
A. The second mate who was then in command of the ship told
him he had goet a letter from the governor desiring him to go
on shore; the second mate took the letter from the boat, he
being then in command of the ship ; he told him, Carter, he had

got a letter, and he took the letter, |

Q. Did Carter go on shore in consequence thereof, A,
Carter said to the second mate, * Underwood you have now the
charge of the vessel and if you tell me togo on shore 1'll go.”

Q. What said Underwood ? A. He hesitated a little,
and at last said he had better go, as it was the captain’s desire,

Mr. Marryatt. It was the desire of the governor, at the
Anstigation of the captain. . ot h o e i B
Here the letter alluded to was -pr.oduced and read as follows-=

“« To Mr. John Carter, Chief Officer of the Albion Whaler,

“SIR, In consequence of a public representation
“made unto me, by the Captain of the ship Albion, Philip
& Skelton, I have to request that you will with as little delay
% as possible wait upon me. = H. NI'YS, Resident,

“ Kenia, 9th of December, 1812.”

- Q. Underwood told him that as it was the captain’s wish
“he had better go? A, Yes sir. |

Q. Did he accordingly go on shore?  A. Yes sir, he
cleaned himself and went on shore accordingly.

| Q. Did he take his clothes on shore with him ¢ A. He
took only what he had on, ' _

Q. How soon after that did the captain come on board ?
‘A. Four or five hours after that. .

Q. Did he on his coming on board, or at any subsequent
time, give orders as to Carter’s things or clothes ? A. Yes,
he desired them to be sent on shore. -

Q. Wasthat on his coming on board?  A. About two
-hours afterwards. - g g
Q. What was the reason assigned?  A. The reason
~assigned was because he was not to ¢ome on board the vessel
again.

" Q. Was one of the ship’s boats sent on shore with his
clothes?  A. Yes it was.

Q. Were any orders given by the captain to the boat’s
crew that took them 2 A, 1 cannot say as to that; 1 was not
on deck at the time,
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Q. And you were not g)resent when they went off to hear

an y particular orders given ! A, No.
Q. During your stay off the island of Celebes, were your

boat’s crew on shore at different imes? A, Yes, Sjr,
Q, How long did the ship stay off the island of Celebes 2

A. Four or five days, I cannot exactly say,
Q. Was it on the first day of your arrlval that he want on

shore 2 A, Yes,
Q. Were you present when the boat’s crew went on shore

three or four days afterwards, - A. Yes,
N Did you hear the captain give any orders as to Carter ?
A. No.

Q. About hew many times was the boat sent on” shore?

A. Three or four times, but I cannot say cxactly.
Q. You did not then hear the captain give any orders as

to Carter 2 A, Onl%r to the mate.
Q. What ordﬁrs A, Not to let Carter come on board..

Q. When was that given? A, The day after Mr.

Carter went on shore.
Q. Did Carter attempt to come on board?  A. I never

saw him afterwards,
Q. Unless the ship’s boat had taken him, had he any other

means of coming at all?  A. No means at all,
Ellenborouqh C.J.) The governor sent the boat, so

that it Was E ysically possible,
y Mr, Marryatt) Did the ship at length sail

mthout hlm ? A, Yes, sir,
Q. And you saw him no more, and therefore you cannot
tell how long he staid? A, I never saw him there, but I

have seen him here since,
. The sh:ip sailed without him 2 A: Yes, snj.
When id your ship come home? A, In the latter

part of Jul 1814.
Q. What share had you? A, The 130th share.

Q. How much money has been pald to you for that 130¢h .
share ¥ A, Somwhere abhout £130,

(Cross examined by Mr, PARK)
Q. Had you sailed on a voyage before then, when Carter

was_ the mate also ? A. No, sir,
Q. But you knew from Carter that he had been the mate

of thm Bh% before ? A, Yes, sir.
ere you the person who assisted in Ypackmw up his
e .1

clothes when they were sent on shore? 8, SIT,
Q. You know that the lo g book is an essentlal thing for
the bounty on whale fisheries, at the Custom-house ?

gett
A gg, Ell‘.

Q. Did you see the log book in Carter scustody? A, I

' saw it m the mate’s custody -
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Q. You dont know that Carter had it, and the ecaptain
could not get it again? A, No, sir. '
- Q. You live with him in London 2 = A. I live with him
because | have no other place to live in. o
Q. Have younot heard from him that he had got the log
book, and refused to deliver it up?  A. No, sir. e
Q. All your ship’s crew had been out that day, some in

one boat and some in another, upon the day the bad language
was spoken? A, Yes, sir.

Q. The captain was out working in one boat, and one
mate in one boat, another in+another * A, Yes, sir. _

Q. And all were fatigued and tired? A. No doubt sir.

Q. Was the stoved boat in tow of the other ¥ A. Yes
she was. A ahick -~

Q. The captain before he got at all to the larboard head
called out to him to go to the starboard or fish side? A, Yes.

Q. Are there not always tackling on that side to haul a
boat up if stoved ? A. They shift them round for convenience
according to circumstances. |
'L Q. But I ask you whether upon that night the tackling
which was to haul up the stove boat was not on the starboard
side ¢ A. I believe it was ordered before the boat did come,
but I cannot exactly say whether it was then up or not. e

Q. Was not the tackling fixed to the main yard on the
starboard side ? A. 1don’t know that it was.

Q. When the mate came on hoard you heard no abusive
language from him to his superior officer?  A. After Captain
Skelton began, there were high words between them both.

- Q. Did Captain Skelton find fault with him for not going
to the fish side?  A. Yes,sir. .
Q. You heard all that passed did you? A, Yes, sir.

Q. Did you ever hear such language from the mate of a
ship to a captain as this? “ You are a rogue and a scoundrel,
“ and 1 am the master of this place.”  A. I heard the captain
ask Carter who is the captain of this ship, and Carter said you
are the captain, but I am the mate, don’t go to use me ill.
| Q. Upon your oath before that had taken place, had not

Carter called him a rogue and a ‘scoundrel, and that he could
hang him if he would? A. No,sir. _

Q. What did the other say? A, The one damned and
the other damned, and they were damning their eyes for some time.

Q. Perhaps the plaintiff said to the captain he was a rogue
and 2 damned scoundrel? A, I don’t recollect any thing of
that being mentioned. _ g -

Q. Will you swear upon your oath, that you never heard
such words as I have mentioned of a rogiie and scoundrel, and
that he could hang him if he would, upon which Skelton said
who fls Master here Mro~Carter? ~ A, Nothing of the kind
passed. ot WY ERER =N :
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Q. ‘Has the mate told you that, at Kenia, the captain of
another vessel offered to bring: Carter home to England, and he
refused ? A. I never heard a word of the kind. -
| Q. Have you heard Carter say that Skelton offered to
leave money in the governor’s hands to carry him to Amboyna
and thence to England ? A. Not from the mate,

Q. From any one in his presence? . A.No. - .

Q. Have you not heard the mate say that this Resident
offered to reconcile him to the captain, and that the captain
offered to agree to it if he would make an apology, but he
refused and msulted him more?  A. No.

. Q. How much did yousay you had received as your
share?  A. About a hundred and thirty pounds.

- Q. Does that include the ten pounds which the owners of
the ship made you a present of before you left Gravesend *
A. No, sir, that was extra. "

- (Re-examined by Mr. MARRYATT) =

Q. You have been with Carter since Tuesday week
A: Yes, sir, .

Q. Did you come in consequence of his subpenaing you?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Where from? = A, From the Isle of Wight.
Q. (By Ellenborough, C,J.) What sort of island is this
Celebes, is it a large island? A, It is very large. '
Q. Are there people residing there ? A. Yes, but 1
~ cannot say how many. Y e
Q. Do you know of any ships touching there, so that
a person may have the opportunity of coming to Europe?
A. Veryfew ships, except those belonging to the company.

Joun BARR sworn (Cexamined by Attorney General,)
Q. Was you one of the persons engaged in this adven~
ture in the Albion?  A. Yes sir. o ol ”
Q. Do you remember the day when the boat in which
Mr. Carter was was stoved by the stroke of a fish? A, 1
cannot say the day ? -
-~ Q. Do you remember such a circamstance 2  A. Yes.
Q. Was you out in the very boat? A, No sir. '
- Q, The boat that took him up brought him -and the rest
of the crew in tow?  A. Yes. A
- Q. What side of the ship was the boat making for? = A,
The Tarboard side. o at s | 4
Q: Was that the side where the fishwere? A, No, the
fish were on the starboard side. 5 _ "
Q. There were four dead whales? A, Three or four to
the best of my knowledge. i
Q. What was the most convenient side to come to with a
stove boat? A. Upon the larboard side, that is where the
fish were not. | Py -l
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- Q. And the boat was making for that side? A, Yes.
Q. What passed when they were making for that side of
the vessel ? A. 1 cannot say what passed, but the captain
called out for them to go to the starboard side. - e :
~ Qi Did you call to him to make him hear?  A. Nosirn,
-- Q. 1f he had hailed with a speaking trumpet éould you
have heard the captain?  A. Yes I could, I understood that
he had hailed him to go to the starboard side.
€. But although you were in a favourable situation to
(l;n(;re heard him, you did not hear him hail at all 2 A, Nol
1d not, | -
. Q. When your boats are taking in, upon any damage
happening to them, how do you take them in? Do you take
them in by a hook at each end and take them up with a
tackle ? A: Yes sin . y
o Q. Bat if stoved you take the boat up at one end ? A,
Yes, by the tackle at the main yard. '
F é; Is there any additional trouble on the one side more
than the other? - A. No, it was just the same. '
Q. What would have been the most convenient mode for .

taking' up a stoved boat, would it have been where there were
fish or where therewerenone?2 A, The larboard side. -

Q. Whether it were to be taken at one end orin the middle?
A, After it is stoved the boat is full of water. Bl
Q. But when you have got hold of it does it signify upen
what side you haul it up ? A. No s
. Q. How far would three or four fish extend off from the
side of the ship?  A. Nearly the breadth of this court, the
one whale alongside the other; large whales would. _
Q. Does that apply to those which were lying there?

A. About half the distance of this place. |
* Q. Then your boat could not come nearer the ship’s side
than the whates would admit ¢  A. No, unless they got be-
tween the ship and the whales. . 5.0 -

Q. It was done by scrambling over the whales or the
ship, but perpendicularly?  A. Yes sir. ' F

- Q. When they came on board how did the captain be-
have to the mate Mr. Carter? A, When I heard that Mr.
Carter had come on board T went aft. B oY
“« Q. Did hecome on board aft?  A. Yes, on the larboard
quarter, _ | R A |
“ Q. What passed ?  A. T then heard the captain begin
to abuse him. = s
= Q. ‘What did he say first that you heard? A, I cannot
recollect exactly 5 I understood that he said, M. Carter, T will
“have none of your airs, and Mr. Oarter said that he did not wish
to give him any airs, but if he valued whales more than men’s
lives, it was time to leave off w‘lm"lirri ' S -
© Q. Had you seen people in the boat after the whale struck

.




. 2%

j¢ by which it was stove? A, Neo, I did not see them until
they came on board. . =~ - s v
, Q. What did the captain say to them ? A. There wasg
a great deal of abuse passed between them, such as damn you
and damn you, | .
. Q. Do you know who began that? _ A. T cannot say

exactly. ‘ :

&. But you are sure both of them used that language,
A. Yes sir, _

Q. What happened then?  A. He collared Mr. Carter
on deck, and called upon the people on deck to assist in putting
him in irons. |

Q. Well sir ? A. Mr, Carter shoved himself from his
hold, and got away from him, and asked him what he (Carter)
should do, and he told him “nothing”; he did not wish him to
do any more duty in the ship; the one said that he should do

no more duty in the ship ; the other said he might rule him by
- fair means, but he should not by foul; he went then down to

his cabn. |
| Q. Was he ordered to his eabin?  A. Yes sir, he was
ordered by the captain, who told him he should do no more duty.

Q. Did he go to his cabin immediately ? A. Lmmediately.

Q. How soon after that did any hoat come from the shore
to your ship, I mean the boat that carried Mr. Carter on shore ?
A. 1 was not on board at the time Mr. Carter was sent for to go
on shore, I was on shore watering. | |

Q. Is there something like a town on the beach? A,
No, there are only huts.

Q. How far did you go up the country?  A. To the
best of my knowledge, | waﬁ:ed up nearly a mile, |

Q. What sort of place is it so far as yousaw it?  A. 1
thought 1t was a place that afforded very little refreshment, but
plenty of wood and water. G et sy

Q. I suppose it was thinly scattered with huts? A,
Thinly scattered: - - 3

Q. What sort of land was it, was it mountainous or flat?
A. It was mountamous. 1

Q. You had the curiosity to look round you I suppose,
did you see any city or town or any thing of that kind? A,
nothing but buts scattered here and there. . =

" Did it appear to be a place very thinly inhabited, or

were there miuch people? A, It was very thinly inhabited.

Q. You had never.been there before? A, Nosir,

Q. Were there any other ships off the island 2 =~ A, None
that I saw. ool oons il ' |

Q. Is it a place much resorted to, to your knowledge?
N Q. Did you ever hear of any body going there? A,

O 81T, PRy Bt P e



93

7 Q. You was on board when Catter went? A, No sir,
I was in the boat that took the things on shore about four of
five hours afterwards, $ 1 ¥i

- Q. By whose orders ? A. By Captain Skelton’s.

- Q. Do you know whether Carter keépt his chest locked or
otherwise ¥ . A, 1 canuot say, his chest appeared to be locked,
and his trunks tied up with cords. .f
.. Q. Did you see Carter when you carried his things on
shore ¥ A. Yessir, _ -

. Q. What orders did you receive from the ecaptain then ?
A. That Mr. Carter was not to be admitted on board from the

shore ; at the same time that we took Mr. Carter’s things on

shore, the surgeon went on shore, S8 3
' Q. What orders had the surgeon?  A. 1 cannot say
what transaction it was about; he remained behind, but I do
not know for why. | - |
Q. Were there orders to leave the surgeon behind, and by

no means to suffer Carter to come back ¢ A. Yes sir.
Q. Did the boat go on shore more than once before you
took your departure, after Carter was taken on shore? A,
Three or four times. - & |
7 Qi Did you hear the ordersgiven as to each time? A,
No, only once, when I was orderded to go on shore with the
things. 4
Q. And then you was ordered not to suffer him to.go on
hoard 2 how long after Carter was sent on shore did you take

your final departure?  A. Nearly a week.
- Q. And at last you sailed away leaving him behind? A,
- Q. How much have you received as the profits of the
adventure # © A, I cannot say what the net produce of my

‘ghare of the adventure comes to, as I drew money from Mr,
and 1 was m the captain’s cabin.

-~ (Cross examined by Mr. PULLER.) it -
Q. This language was upon the day when the boat was
stoved ?  A. It was upon. that day. . i
- Q. How many days had you sailed before you arrived at
Kenia?  A. Seven or eight days. i ¢ S 99 |
. Q. Upon the day on which the business took place had
you been upon very good whaling ground? ‘A, I cannot
say 3 we had three boats out, the captain in one boat, Carter,
the first mate, in another boat, and Underwood, the second
mate, in another boat,
Q. Upon that day all the three boats were employed in
the pur.uit of whales during the whole day? - ~A. Yes sir.
- Q. Which of the three came on board first ? A. The
captain.. - SR REOT YAR-S0-NBaE NIV RO oL ST
Q. Was it towards dusk when he came on hoard ? = A,
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No, it wanted nearly two hours of dusk when he came on bHoard.
Q. You remained on board? = A. I was on board at
the time. _ = e
Y. Did you on board see the accident which happened
to Mr. Carter’s boat ? A. I had 'not seen it. £

Q. The captain went aloft and saw it?  A. There was
a man on board who saw it. | |
Q. Soon after the captain came on board, was preparation
made for fixing the tackling on the starboard side to take in thé
stoved boat ? A. About two hours afterwards. |

Q. He made preparation to take in the stoved boat on the
starboard side ? A. Yes Sir. '

Q. That boat was in fact at last taken up on the starboard
side? A. Yes Sir. ' |

- Q. And when Carter came to the larboard side it was at
last taken up the starboard side? A, Yes sir, but he had
two boat’s crews. ' | g

Q. Underwood’s boat was gone to the assistanéé of
Carter’s boat, and before they came up the tackling was prepa=
red to take them up on the starboard side?  A. Yes sir.

Q. There was no difficulty from these whales, because
boats came inside of those whales, and the tackling was fixed
on the starboard side ? A. There is no difficulty if one
boat’s crew had been in the boat; but there being two boat’s
crews, and besides containing the different implements of
whaling at the time, it was overloaded. '

Q. What difficulty was there of getting between the
whales and being taken up by the tackling? _ A. The lars
board side was the most convenient. v | _

Q. Could they conveniently, and with safety, have pulled.
in the boats notwithstanding the whales? A, With one
boat’s ¢rew, but with two boat’s crews, and two tubs of line, it
was not, in my judgment, to be done with safety.

Q. How many besides Carter had come on board on the
Jarboard side ? A. Five or six, the remainder were pulled
up on the other side, after some things were handed up.

Q. You had then got on the ground where you expected
to get whales? . A. Yes sir. ' Shs ik

Q. On the next morning did you not immediately jeava
that and go to Kenia, a place of seven or eight days sail from
that place?  A. Yes. | - R

Q. What ship accompanied you ? A. No ship at-all.

Q.. How soon did you see the Echo, Captain Whittens.
A. In three days. ' o5 -

Q. Did the Echo, Captain Whittens, lye with you at
Kenia? ' A. Yes, she went in with us at the same time.

- Q. Did she remain there until you came away, or did she
come awa]g before you?  A. We came away before her, -

Q. Did you ever-.after the day on which the boat was
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stoved, and antil you arrived at Kenia, and left that place again
to go out after whalesat all? = A, Not once.

Q. Your fishing was stopped and put an end to 2 * A,
Yes sir., . '
Q. Your veséel at that time was but very little loaded 2
A. But very little indeed ; as nearly as I canrecollect we had
one hundred and twenty barrels of 0il. -
| Q. (by Ellenborough, €. J.) What did you do with the
three fish, did you leave them behind you?  A. We took
all that was gmg out of them, | -
- Q. (by Mr, Puller) At the time that this language passed
between Carter and Skelton, how many of the crew were upon
deck witnesses of it? A, I cannot exactly say.

Q. Was Mr. Underwood or Mr. Grew present? A, I
do not think at the beginning of the discourse that Mr. Grew or
Mr. Underwood were there ; they were shoving the boat round.

Q. Excluding those two were the rest of the erewon deck %
A. Five or six, but whom they were I cannot say positively.
- Q. Underwood, I take it for granted, was on deck after-
wards?  A. Yes sin, very shortly afterwards ; he was on deck
before the piece of business was settled.

Q. Was he on deck when Carter thought proper to say
“if you Captain Skelton, value fish more than men’s hives, it was
“time to give over whaling 2’  A. No I do not think he was,

Q. Who were there? A, There were five or six.

Q. Carter is a much stronger man than Captain Skelton ?
A. I can only speak of him by his looks, he appears to be a
stronger man. ,_ 52

Q. Have you any doubt thathe is stronger? ~ A. 1 can’t
say.
- L Q. Do you believe him to be so ? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Do you believe him to be stronger than you. A. Yes,
Q. I believe I am not wrong when I say he was the
strongest man of any in your ship? A. No I don’t think he was.

Q. Who was stronger ¢ A. The carpenter.

Q. Of how many did the crew consist? A, Of twenty-
eight. . :
- ( Ellenborough, C. J.) 1Is that so material, that you
should question about the strength of one man ? There eannot
be any strength of Sampson there—there can be no danger
from any particular man being disobedient. |

Q. Do you remember Underwood, when these parties
were on deck; going up to assist the captain? A, Yes, sir.

Q. Did he asssist him or was he deterred by what Carter
said to him? -~ A. He did not assist him. Bt

Q. What did Carter say to him? A, He said he had
better have nothing to do with the piece of business.

Q. Underw ood, the second mate, seei?ﬂg these * two
together went up to assist the captain? - A. Yes, sir, Lsaw that.
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Q. How were they then together? A, The Captaio

bad Mr, Carter by the collar. - . -. |
Q. (By Ellenborough, C, J.) Did Carter strike the

captain?  A. No, not in throwing him off,
Q. He never struck him ? A. No.

Q. He got from him by withdrawing himself off? A Yes,-
Sir. | |
Q. (By Mr. Puller) Carter I believe was a very good
seaman, and a very useful man on board the ship? A, So
far as I know he was so.

Q. When he behaved well? A, 1 never saw him

behave ill,

Q. (By Attorney General) As to this tackle, pray what
is this tackle which is earried out to the starboard side, 1 mean
what does it consist. of 2 . A, It consists of a single or double

block, to which tackle is fixed to pull up the boats with,
( Lllenborough, C. J.) In strictness his orders ought to

have been obeyed even, although the other side might have
been the better mode. |

- Q. (By Aitorney General) How long would it have
taken for any couple of hands to have shifted that block from

one side to the other? . A. Five minutes. .

' Q. (By My, Park) There are bulwarks and railing on
the larboeard side, are there not ? A. Yes, there-are bulwarks.
Q. Would nct that be an incumbrance rather than a
benefit toyou? A, Yes, sir, | '

Attorney General. 'That is my case.
Lillenborough, C.J. Have you any evidence as to what
was the value of the plaintiff’s share of the proceeds of this

adventure ?
Attorney General. Yes, my lord, I'll call a witness upon

Jonux Hamoxp sworn (examined by Mr Marryait,)
). What were the nett proceeds of this cargo of oil, by

the Albion? Al £16,108. 13s. ad.
Q. (By Mr. Park) What was owing to Carter at the time,

if he had come home, as his share? A. £568. 8d. would
have been his share, after deducting some trivial expences,

Attorney. General. That is my case, .

. : —— || |||- :

Mr. PARK. . May it please your lordship; gentlemen of the
jury ; in this place I am sure you have all had so man:iy fyears
experience of the temperate manner in which my learned friend
the Attorney General opens cases of this sort, and the absti-
‘nence from irritation which he observes, that it was quite un-

necessary for him to tell you tlI:i)at he was a cool matter-of-facts
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man, and therefore that he had a plain story to tell you; 1
think that after he was occupied forty minutes in stating that-
story, I may venture to say that he treated the question in as
cool and dispassionate language as ever he treated any case of
the sort. He has called witnesses who have proved just what
I expected, for I did not expect that his witnesses would be
those upon whose cross-examination I could prove my case.
My learned friend told you that he knew I would at least call
one witness, but that it would be by deposition, and he
endeavoured to preclude that evidence, although he did not
know whether I would produce it or not; he has accordingly
made some very learned observations upon' it, but he has
descanted more upon the deposition which 1 shall not read, than
to the one which I mean to read. 1 have a deposition which
shews that the second mate was to receive a hundred pounds
for doing’ the duty of the plaintiff, and it was surely a matter of
course that he should receivesa larger remuneration than that of
second mate , for his additional services; but as to that sum,

there was no agreement nor stipulation that he was to receive it
upon your quarter deck, rather than the quarter deck of the
ship ; this sum, although the owners of the ship say they wont
pay it at all, yet he is determined to recover it. My learned:
friend has chosen to comment upon a deposition, as to which
a jury setting here can know nothing more about than they can
be supposed to do about what the Great Mogul is doing at this
moment; he has chosen to comment for nearly half an hour
about a deposition, of which neither you nor his lordship ought
to take any notice, it not being to be produced, but at any rate
it is unfair thus to load a witness under such circumstances, or

to load the captain with being answerable for what somebody
else had done. Mr. Underwood, the gecond mate, in answer to
that interrogatory, in which the question as to this £100. is put,
expressly says, “That nothing has been said by the owners
“ respecting the evidence to be given by this deponent and the
“ gaid Samuel Grew thereon, that the said defendant has not
« intimated that unless he the defendant shall be successful,
“ this deponent shall not be entitled to the remuneration of the
“ £100. or a less sum than the £100.; that no stipulation or
“ agreement to that effect has been made between deponent:
“ and said defendant ; that this deponent expects that he-shall
“ receive the whole of his wages for which he shipped, together
¢ with the said £100. whether the said defendant shall be beat
“ in this action or otherwise.” From this it appears that his
receiving the £100. was not to depend upon that evidence which
he should give; this case does not depend upon that evidence
in the least, but it depends upon the uniform and consistent
evidence which'I shall lay before you. I have learned all my
knowledge upon these circumstances in this place. I know:
what Englishmen feel as to the necessity of subordination on:
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board ship, and whats has been said concerning it by learned
authors : %ut says my learned friend, i1s it not a tremendous
sitnation for the plaintiff to be placed in, when exposed to such
injuries as he has received from this man, and put into such
great jeopardy? I say that it was a tremendous situation for
the captain, who is the defendant in this case, to be placed in.
If you be to hold in this place that subordination to duty is to
be kept up on board ship, I say that even suppose a captain
had formed a wrong judgement, as to whether the starboard or
the larboard side was the most proper for a stoven boat to be
brought up on, yet if he be to have his judgment counteracted
and controlled by the intemperate language of a mateor any one
on hoard (although a mate may say and recommend that the do-
Ing this or that in another mode would be better)jthere is an end
of the commerce and navigation of Britain. Independently of

that, where a captain is in such a distant part of the world, if a
mate be permitted to use such language, it would be impossible
for any man to sail under such circumstances; and I have heard

my learned friend, ou former occasions, in adverting to subjects
of this sort admit the necessity of keeping up the most strict
degree of subordination. What motive, I would ask you, could
this gentleman, Captain Skelton, have had for such a conduct as
that which has been stated 2 What motive could he have had to
dismiss this man from on board his ship under such circum-
stances ? Had he any malice against him? Was there any
previous disagreement hetween them ? On the contrary we find
“that he bad employed him upon a voyage before this, and had
him then as his mate; he never had a word with him till that
day, and it has heen shewn you that this Mr. Carter was

acknowledged by all to be an able and useful seaman. 1 observe
ray learned friend taking a note of what I am stating to you
upon this subject, and I suppose it is because he has stated
that the captain himself was a part owner of this ship, and
derived a certain advantage from placing the plaintifi in this
situation, as the plaintiff himself had also a share of the nett
proceeds of this adventure; these were stated to be £16,000
odd, and because the captain had a share, is it to be believed
that any captain in sucE a situation would be so foolish as to
risk the whole of that concern, and the prosecution of the fishing
adventure (for they had only then got a hundred and twenty
barrels of oil or blubber) for the paultry consideration of
receiving a greater share of these profits, by the distribution of
the plaintiff’s share, amounting to £568. amongst those con-
cerned with him? This captain never indulged himself in any
one act of tyranny against this man, there is no evidence that
ever he did, and, if so, you must of course think that he had
some reasonable and well’ grounded motive for discharging as
he did this individaal from his ship. . The last witness but one
has*proved.a most importaut fact; perbaps it did not strike you
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at first, but it tended to shew that there was nothing in the
captain’s mind but an absolute apprehension as to the safety of
the whole concern, at the time he found it necessary te act as’
he has done. We on shore should perhaps, under other ¢ir-
cumstances, treat the language that was used by the plamtiff in
this case as the idle words of an idle man, but on hoard ship
it is totally different the using'such language is the consequence
of insuberdination, and gives rise to mutiny: for supposing a
captain overlooks such an offence, it is astonishing how that
disposition to mutiny fiies like wild-fire from one end of the ship
to the others A wilness says he never saw any improper
conduct on the part of the plaintiff, but merely heard the
language which has been stated ; is it to be alledged that
language such as that which was used, on such an occasion,
does not signify any thing ¢ Although it appears that they had
oot but a small portion of the adventure at that time on bodrd ;
although they were then upon the whaling station ; and aithough
everr day would have been in that station most usefully
employed in procuring their cargos they never ventured to
fish for more, but employed seven or eight days in going to and
remaining at Kenia, and for tliis reason, namely, because the
captain could not venture afterwards to go out of his ship, he
being afraid that this man n his absence would do some injury.
This man it 1s said was left in an island almost deserted, aigb -
ing no real comfort, and with only a few huts, and that he was
to work his way from thence home as he best could; it so
happens however that that statement can be completely
answered, and that this plaintiff, even when there, still refused

to submit himself to his lawful employer, and that he was
offered a passage home by Mr. Skelton, upon condition of his

submissien to his orders, which offer he contemptuously refused ;
he was then offered money, but that was also refused con-
temptueu.&y; still the captain offered to receive him on board
if he would make an apology, which he refused to do. I state
it boldly that, under such circumstances, it was impossible that
this man could be received on board again with any degree
of safety to the concern, without making an ample apology, but
he, on the contrary, would make no apology whatever. 1 asked
the question of a witness, whether the person who packed his
clothes and other things had not seen the log book; I don’t
know whether it be within your knowledge or not, but I under-
stand that before people can get the bounty, payable upon the
whale fishery, the log book i1s a necessary amf indispensable
piece of evidence to be produced at the Custom House. 1t1s
stated to me, that this. man, Carter, had the log book in his
possession, that he took it away with him from the ship, and
that when 1t was asked of him as being of the greatest Impor«
tance, “ No, said ‘he, “ The captain shall not have the log
book ;” and even to this day the plaintiff has in his possession
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that log book. Would not such a conduct justify you also here
for approving of such conduct as that of the captain, when
placed in such asituation ; he was in a situation in which it was
of the highest. importance that his orders should be attended to,
The man, Pavis, has been examined, but he avould not speak
to the language which, 1 stated in my question to him, had gzan
used by the plaintitf;' there is this peculiarity in the case as
made out by him, for he hears all at once the captain ask “ Whe
“is master here ?” to which the plaintiff answered “ You are.”
Isthat to be believed ? Is it at all likely that if there had been
no previous languwage between the parties, that Mr. Skelton
would have put that question? -+ You are,” says he; that is
apparently a civil answer, but I'll prove that it was directly the
reverse. The plaintiff had let out a great deal of language,
which I insist was not the sort of language that ought to have
been used by an inferior officer to a superior. The first thi

that the witness, Barr, hears was, “ Don’t give yourself su

“ airs,” # Suppose that the captain, right or wrong, orders these
people ta come on the starboard side (and you have heard
nothing to ascribe any doubt that it was the most convenient
side) he had actually got his tackle fixed to that part of the
vessel, where the boat might be got up with the greatest ease,
and in order that the men might not come on board on the
larboard side, he hailed Carter, and acguainted him of that
circumstance ; and besides there were rails and other incum-
brances wpon the other side, Was the mate bound to ebey or
not to obey this lawful authority? If he were bound to obey,
what right had he then to use such language as he appears to
have used upon that occasion? The captain hails this man
after these preparations, 1n order to prevent him going to the
larbeard side, and to make him go to the starboard side, and
when, notwithstanding this order, the plaintiff comes to the
Jarboard side, he addresses his captain in a manner which
occasioned the captain to say, “ I desire you not to give your-
“ self such airs;” to this Carter replies, “ I don’t mean to do
% so, but if you mean to value whales more than men’s lives, it
“ js high time to leave off whaling ? Is that a proper sort of
language to proceed from a mate to a f:aptain of a ship, or
wonld any superior in any situation permit it to be held by his
inferior, without objecting to it? Then when the eaptamn says
to Carter, “ Go down below for you shall do no more duty on
“ board as to managing this ship;” Carter answers by saying,
86 Y&ﬂ may rule me b fair_m_eans,but ‘yﬁu Shﬂll never l'ule me
“ by foul ;” thatsurei;f is equally improper langnage from an in<
ferior to a superior officer. Then it appears that Underwood went
up to assist the captain, and why? Because it appears that the
captain was in jeopardy, and that this man was taking aliberty
which he had no right to take; and what was Carter’s language
upon that occasion ? « Underwood, you had better have nothing
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to do with this affair ;” ‘and wupon that, Underwood does not
assist the captain.  Does any one of the crew afterwards offer to
assist the captain? No, they hear all this abusive language,
and never assist him; and then Carter says to the captain,
“don’t go to shove me overboard as you did the steward,” by
which he insinuates, not only to the captain, but to all his crew,
‘that he (the captain) had actually committed murder. If such
language as this from an inferior to a superior officer on hoard
aship'1s to be tolerated by a jury in Guildhall; then I say there
is an end of our commerce; it is impossible to sail to any part
of the world if a captain is to suffer such language as this to be
held to him by any of his crew, for if so permitted, it is evident
that mutiny would spread from one end of the ship to the other,
and it would even spread amonst all our ships. Tgis gentleman,
the defendant, then gets rid of this man entirely ; for until such
time as he does that, he could not venture to pursue that course
which he had been pursuing, for the benefit of his owners and
his own, but have only brought home a part of the cargo from
that place which he ought to have brought. Now; as to the
nature of the defendants evidence ; my learned friend has en-
deavoured to do much in order to forestall me, and to detract -
from the merits of those whose evidence 1 shall call, by intima-
ting that they are witnesses who are interested in the cause 3
now, gentlemen, Mr. Underwood, is no ways further interested
than that he being a youn%‘ ‘man not thoucht competent to be
put into the situation which the plaintiff held, is to have a cer-
tain specified remuneration for assisting in doing- a greater
degree of duty. This, therefore, only affords another argument,

to shew why the ecaptain would not be inclined (if it could have
been possible to have aveided it) to quarrel with -this man,

Carter, if he could have kept him with any degree of safety. I
shall prove that my client made overtures to the mate of another
~ship, but that the captam of that ship would not agree to part
with him, or that they themselves could not agree upon terms.
] have the captain of that vessel now in court, and he will tell
you the fact as it really is. Captain Skelton feeling that he
could not succeed in that negociation, made the best bargain Le
‘could with those two persons, Underwood and Grew, on board
his own ship. I am-afraid to name to you the number of wit-
nesses whom I could call; those I shall call will tell you this
story ; that being upon the whaling station on the 2nd of De-
cemberyin three boats, namely, the captaimn commanding in one,
the second  mate in another, and a third in which was the
-plaintiff; Carter, which last boat one of the whales struck and
‘stove in the planks ; upon which Underwood offered assistance,
but which Carter said was unnecessary; soon afterwards this
mate hoists or waves his- signal of distress, upon which the
second mate, Underwood, made up to him again, and took that
boat, in which Carter was and his crew, in tow to the ship ; in
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the interim the captain arrives, and as was his duty, he looks out
and discovers, or some of his men discovers what had happened,
and it was immediately reported that there was a boat stoven 3
the captain immediately ordered tackle to be‘ run up to the yard
arm upon the starboard side of the vessel, in order to hoist up
that stoven boat, thinking that upon that side 1t could be got up
with perfect ease, while it could not be so done upon the other
side. He sends out his own boat to give assistance on that
occasion in which was Underwood, and I will prove to you that
upon the orders being communicated to Carter, this was his
language, “ you may go to hell and your master too, and tell
“ him that I say so.” . This is what the plaintiff himself says in
the beginning of the transaction. Well, when they came along
side, Carter, in contradiction of those orders so communicated,
chuses to go to the larboard side, for reasons best known to

himself; but at all events, in disobedience to the captain’s com--
mands. I have heard in other cases many captains say here

that strict obedience to orders was-absolutely necessary, even
although their judgments might happen to be wrong. I will
prove this, not by depositions, but by living witnesses in this
place, who shall be subjected to his lordship’s examination and

your’s ; and-I'll prove also that the captain remonstrated. with

Carter upon the subject, upon which this fellow said “ you are
- ¢ a damned scoundrel and a villain, you know I can hang you if
I wish it.” 1 stated to you that the captain was astonished at

this, and a great portion of the crew heard this language ; upon
which the captain said “ Who is master here ?” to which Carter
said “ you are, but 1 am mate, sir ;" speaking this not in a cool
tone but in 2 violent manner, upon which the captain said to him
- ¢ I must put you in irons,” and went up to hm_l, imprudently
perhaps,--and collared him, at the same time calling to his crew
to assist him. Upon this, Underwood went.up to the captain,
and to him Carter says “you had better not meddle with this
matter,” and at this time he wrenched himself from the captain’s
hold ; the captain felt for his personal safety, and then ordered
him to go-down below. If this be so, surely there was danger
on board the ship of mutiny, for not one of the crew would
venture to help their captain. If they had protected him per-
“haps there would have been no further words nor appreheusions,
but they all stood aloof, upon which the captain said « [f this
conduct of your’s continues 1 must send down for my Pistols.”
| Carter then stated “I have pistols and canusethem too.” With o
forbearance which does honor to Captain Skelton, he disengages
himself from, and says to Carter, “go down to your cabin, you
« ghall not do any more duty on board this ship.”” 1 dont state
a fable to you, gentlemen, for so far from the captain doing any
vigorous act, he merely ordered Carter below; and when he
came to Kenia, in the island of Celebes, he saw Capt. Whittens,
and consults with him as to what was best to be done ; he tells
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him his situation, and he tells Carter before, that he was going
to see what the Dutch resident would do in the business;, and
upon this Carter states “ I am glad of it, the sooner 1 leave the
ship the better.” The captam accordingly goes: to the Datelns
resident at Kenia, and soon afterwards this letter, which we
have already heard, was written, not in: violent but in the most
moffensive terms, thus: ,

“ To Mr. John Carter, chief officer of the Albienwiinler.

Sir, In consequence of a public representalion made
unto me by the captain of the ship Albion, Philipp Skelton, &
have to request that you will, with as little delay as possible,
wait upon me, (Sigred) I. NI; ¥S, Resident.

Kenia, December 9, 1812.” ' OY,

Carter accordingly waits upon the resident, and I'll prove to you
what sort of story was told by the defendant in the presence of
the plaintiff, and that he did not deny one fact; the captain
then said “1I dare not take this man on board again, but if you
Captain Whittens, will take him as a passenger in. your vessel,
PIl pay his passage ;"> that Captain Whittens positively offered.
to take him, on which the pF. mﬁ aid: “ nas” then Captain
Skelton says; “TH tel¥'you what I'l "36"&1’611,’ T Teave money
“ enough in the hands ef Mr. Neys, to support you in the islandy
“ and‘until such time as you can get to Amboyna, and to pay
“ for your patsage thence to Europe.” “ No,” says Carter, “I
“wont take it.””  Then all his cloaths are sent for upon finding
that he would do nething. The resident then says, «let me be
the mediator to make it up between you, I hope Captain Skelton
will take you baek,” «“ with the greatest pleasure,” says Captain
Skelton, “T1l do it if after such language having been used on:
“ board, in the hearing of the present crew, he make a suitable
apology ;” his answer is; “ 1 will not.” What is a superior
officer to-do under these circumstances? If he be not in:a con«
dition to dismiss officers when: se situated, the service must
perish. He has not put this person on shere without a causey
neither has he put ‘him on an island' which was deserted. e
offers to takehim on board again, if he, Carter, wounld say: that
he was sorry for the words-hie had.used, and thatle would not
use such any more. Tlhe articles. which were put m by my
learned fiiend, prove my case ; these articles were entered into
for this reason, that where such a large bonus as £568. is to be
given to this man, and various proportions: to the others, it is
necessary that there should be a striet obedience to the coms
mands of their superior officers by the persons so entering.inta
the employment, and that they should conduet themselves witly
sobriety, as mariners should do on board a ship; if so, isithis
seamanlike conduet from a mate to his commanding officer ¢
~Is this any thing like obedience 2 The third article of agreen~
- ment goes on to say “that they will stand by and obey all
commands to the utmost of their skill and ability; for the pre-
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servation of the ship.” What is more necessary for that purpose
than to preserve good order and decorum on board of her?
What is there so ready to destroy a vessel, or what could he
have done more marked to shew a non-observance of that article,
which he is bound to observe ? I shall not detain you any longer
with observations, but merely to call evidence, |

EVIDENCE FOR THE DEFENDANT.

W. B. FrEAMES sworn (examined by Mr. Scarlett) _
Q. You were an apprentice on board this ship, the Albion #

A. Yes,siri @ |
Q. Your apprenticeship is out ? A. Yes.

Q. Do you remember the dispute between the master and
mate? I don’t exactly remember the day of the month it

happened. .

Attorney General, 1 object to the examination of this
witness; I take it for granted that this young man is to have a
280th part of the whole net proceeds of this adventure, which
were to be divided amongst all who were entitled to take, and
that amount will be so much less by what is recovered by this
action. I find opposite to his name he is to have a share,
amounting to a 280th part of the proceeds of the fins and oii
brought by this adventure, the whole of which is £16,000. to be
divided into a certain number of shares, so that if my client
takes away one 28th share he diminishes that amount,

Ellenborough, C. J. He is neither tc have more nor less

in any event. ke
Attorney General. T'll not persist in the objection, but I

may perhigs have to file an information for it in name of the

Attorney General. _ ,
' Q. (By Mr. Scarlett) You have not agreed fora share ?

A. No I have not; I am E{aid by wages. atafh
Q. Were you in Mr. Carter’s boat at the time it wag

stove? A, Yes, sir, R , |
Q. You were one of his crew? = A, Yes, sir,

Q. Had vou taken any whales? ~ A. Yes, we had

killed one whale and harpooned another. .
Q. It was that second whale that stove your boat ? A.
Q. Did she escape with the line and harpoon? A, Yes,
but we gottheline. =~ '~ - ' |
~+ Q. Do you kunow whether the Captain and Underwood
were also out upon-that day ? E A. Yes, sir.
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Q. Was Underwood near enough to see the accident at
first? .. A, Yes,sir. |

Q. Do you remember of his applying to Carter to know if
he wanted assistance at first? A, %’es he came and asked
Carter if he wanted assistance. _ '

Q. What did Carter say ? A. He said he did not want
any assistance at that time.

Q. Do you remember him giving any orders'as to the

whale which was lost 2 A. Underwood asked if he should

oo and fasten it.

Q. And what did he say? ~ A. That he might go and
try to save what line he could. |

Q. Did Underwood go to pursue it? A, Yes, sir.

Q. Did you find afterwards that the danger was greater
than was supposed? A, Yes, sir.

Ellenborough, C. J. There is no fault imputable to
Carter in this circumstance which took place at that time.

Mr. Park, There was a prompt attention to him by
Underwood and the Captain, it is only to shew that.

Q. Did you afterwards set up signals both to the ship
and Ualerwmd? PN SO, 7 VD1 S

At what distance from the ship were you? A. About

four or five miles.

Q. Underwood saw your signals?  A. Yes, sir, I suppose
he did, he was not far from us.

Q. And he afterwards came and took your boat in tow,
and your people got into his? A, Yes, sir. '

Q. And then made way towards the ship? A, Yes.

Q. Was it erowing dark ? A. Yes, it was nearly dusk
when Underwood picked us up. '-

Q. Did you put out any light?  A. Yes, when we got
out into the other. _

Q. These were night lights ; were lights put out also from
the ship?  A. Yes,sir, - |

Q. That you might know where she was?  A. Yes, sir.
| Q. When you were within a mile or two of the ship did
the captain’s boat come out to you ? A. Yes, sir. '

Q. Who: was the steerer of the captain’s boat? A,
Stephen James. o2 '

Q. He was the captain’s boat steerer?  Yes, sir.

Q. When he came near to you did he say any thing to
Carter? A. Yes, he asked Carter if he wanted any assistance.
. Q. What did he say?  A. He said he did not want any
assistance either from him or his master, and that he might go
and tell him so. | vii L ofe e ool ails

Q. Did Stephen James then tell him any thing as from
the master? - A. Yes, that he was to go to the starboard side,
and that there was tackling there to take in the boat. |

Q. What did he say to that? = A. I don’t recollect any

*
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answer he made.
" Q. Have you been more than one voyage?  A. That

was my first voyage.

Q. Is the stoving of a boat frequent ? A. It happens
pretty often. : |
-- Q. Do you know, when a boat is stoved, whether the
proper side to take her in is the weather side or the lee side ?
A. We generally take them in on the starboard side.

Q. Do you know the reason of that ? A. Yes, sir, it is
evident, as there are bulwarks on the larboard side and the
boat’s debits. |

Q. What is that? A, A piece of wood hanging over
the side like a crane, with a tackle to it to hoist the boat up.

Q. After Carter had heard that he was to come on the
starboard side, what side did he come to ? A. We were on

the larboard quarter, and he put up in that direction to the ship.
Q). What distance was he when the captain gave this

order? A. Within a mile.
Q. Was the shiplyingto? A, 1 cannet tell.
Q. How were her sails 2 I did not take notice.

Q. Did you hear Carter give any directions to you as to
what side they should go upon?  A. He gave directions to

pull away and get hold of the ship. :
- Q. Did Carter pull up till he got on deck ? A. Yes,sir.

Q. Before that did you hail, or did the captain hail
Carter ? A. Yes, he hailed. | 4
Q. What did you hear the captain say to Carter? A,
-He told him to come up on the starboard side, as there was a

tackle to take in the boat. -
Q. Notwithstanding that, he pulled up on the larboard
side ? A. Yes, sir, | |
Q. Did he get up directly ? A Yeugeesgy &
Q. What was the first thing you heard between the
captain and Carter ? A. 1 cannot tell exactly.
Q. As nearly as you can? A. 1 heard the Captain
ask him why he (]Yid not come on board on the starboard side

 as he had ordered him. | |
Q. What did he say o him ? A. He told him he wag

glad to get hold of the ship any way, for he had been long

enough in the water. _ :
Q. (By Ellenboréugh, C. J.) Had he been wet? A

v N ORS T fape. <0 (Al s o
_ ({ (By Attorney General) How many hours had he
been in the water 2 A. Near two hours, or an hour and a
hallf. -
Q. (By My, Scarlett) Did __the captain say any thing
about what he had done in the ship when he first discovered
that his boat was stoved ?  A. No, sir. -
Q. Tell us all you recollect about it; what language did
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~you hedr from one to the other? A, I recollect tﬁings_Being
said, but 1 can’t say what was first or afterwards.
Q. As nearly as yon can?  A. There was a great deal
of abuse on both sides. | A
Q. ( By Ellenborough, C. J.) What sort of words passed
between them?  A. I don’t recollect. ' |
- Q. You don’t recollect who began to use angry words;
the one to the other? A. No,
: Qs By Mr. Scarlett ) What words did yon hear ? A.
I heard Carter tell the captain, he was a damned villain, and
that he could hang him, and he could prove 1t.

- Q. Did he say for what?  A. No, he did not say for
what, but only that he could hang him, and be could prove it.

Q. Did you hear the captain say any thing ? A._ The
captain told him that when he took him on board the shi® first
he had not a coat to his back. |

Q. Were the crew then all present upon deck?  A. Not
all present, but there was some on the other side getting the
things out of the boat | _ f
Z - Q. Were there several upon*deck, ;anti within he_aring of
this? A. Yes, I should suppose they were within hearing of it.

Q. How near were you standing? A, As far as I am
from you. | |
- Q. Did you see the captain do any thing?  A. Isaw
him collar him. _

Q. What did Carter do upon the captains collaring him ?
A. He put his hand to Lim and pushed him away, and the
captain called for assistance of the ship’s company:

Q. What sort of man is Carter in his person? A, A
strong man, a very powerful man.

Q. A very strong man ? A. Yes. %

Q. When the captain called the ship’s company to assist
him did any of them go ? A. The second mate, Mr. Under-
wood, went up. | '

Q. The rest did not go?  A. No, sir.

Q. What did Carter say to Underwood, when he went to
assist the captain ? A. Idid nothear. .

" Q. Did Underwood do any thing to assist him? A, T
cannot say. :

Q. You cannot tell what passed?  A. No, sir.

O. It was dark?  A. Yes. <
_ Q. What happened then?  A. I heard the captain call
for his pistols. ST P

Q. What did Carter then say?  A. Carter then said
- that he had pistols as well as the captain. -

Q. In what manner did he say that; was it as an angry
man? A, Yes, he seemed in a passion at the time. |

Q. What further passed when he said he had pistols too ?
A. T don’t recollect exactly what passed immediately after, but
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I know the captain told him he should do no mote duty in the

ship. | ' | ,
: Q. Did you hear any order given him to go below?
;A. Y es. it | |

Q. What did Carter do on hearing that order? A,
Carter asked him first what he wanted him to do. |

Q. Well? A, The captain answered “nothing,” and
then Carter asked him two or three times over, and he still
answered “ nothing.”

Q. Do you mean that he had asked him ¢kat after he had
ordered him to go below?  A. Yes. o '

Q. He said “nothing 2” A. Yes. '-

Q. Did he go below ? A. 1 cannot say, after that I
went forward.

Q. (by Ellenboroungh, C.J.) Did you see him upon deck
afterwards? A, That was the last thing I heard him say.

Q. Did you see him any time afterwards upon deck ?
A. The same evening. ”

Q. How long afterwards?  A. It might be an hour and
a half after that.

Q. Did he keep below the rest of the time he was on
board?  A. He was sometimes on deck and sometimes below.

Q. Did he go upon the quarter deck?  A. Yes. .
. Q. Do you recollect any thing being said at the time of
the altercation, or soon afterwards, about his being put on
shore ? A. Yes, sir. :

Q. What did the captain say?  A. The captain said he
wished he was in harbour, as he would put him on shore or
something to that purpose. | 2 |

Q. What did (Exr'ter say to that? = A. Carter said he

wished he was.
Q. Any thing more ? A. Not'that I recollect
Q._Dig you fall in with any other ship? Did you fall
in with the ship Echo, Captain Whittens ? A. Yes. =
Q. After the time this thing happened, and until you got
to Kenia, did you see any whales? A, Yes. |
Q. Did the captain go out of the ship in order to getaway 2
A. No, sir. ' : g
Q. He kept on board the ship? A, Yes.
Q. Did the Echo accompany you to Kenia ? A, Tt did.
Q. Did the chief mate, Mr. Carter, do any duty after-
‘wards? A, No, sir, I never saw bim do ang. _
e bQ‘ Did you go on shore at Kenia? . Just upon the
cacn. |
Q. Carter"was left there ? A. Yes. | o
Q. Do you know of ‘g'_our own RDOWIedge of the captain’s
applying to get another chief mate from the Echo? = A. 1
don’t know it of my own knowledge, ' |

Q. Did Underwood afterwards act as chief mate for the
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remainder of the voyage home? A, Yes. -
~ Q. Did Underwood understand navigation ? A. He
understood it a little ; he understood a very little of it.

Q. Carter was a good seaman and understood his duty ?
A. Yes, .
T L S G c?tain afterwards instruct Underwood in
navigation? A, Yes,

(Cross-examined by Attorney General.)

Q. It was after the captain had called for the ship’s com-
pany o help him to put Carter in irons, that the captain called
for pistols ? A. I cannot be sure of that.

'* Q. I think we have heard it so, and the captain said,
“‘that he, Carter, had not a ¢oat to his back when he first took
“ him on board his ship,” the captain then called for his pistols,
and the plaintiff said * I have pistols too,” is that so? A.

: YES; Sil‘i 1

Q. Your apprenticeship is out ? A. No, but the owners

gave me-my time up. A o

- Q. How much of the time was to come?  A. Half of it

was to come, ¢ e G g

| Q. They tell me that a lad’s first half of his time is not

the most valuable to the master, but it is when he gets to be a

fine stout lad like himself, that he becomes more valuable.
~ A, Yes, but I have been at sea before that ; the owners sold the

ship, and gave all the apprentices their time up.

Q. Mr. Skelton was an owner ? A. Yes, 8ir. .

Q. Have you seen Mr. Skelton lately ? A. Yes, some-
fimes two or three times a week. ' | ‘

Q. Is not this Mr, Skelton ? (pointing to a person who sat
near him) % A. Yes, sir; I have not spoken to him for

months together.
Q. Has he left the sea altogether? A. T don’t know

whether he has or not, I know nothing more than from hear say.
Q. Have you heard it or not?  A. I have heard it so
reported that he has left the sea. |
Q). Has he made his fortune ? A. T don’t know for that.
Q. When did he tell you that he had left the sea? = A,
He never told me. e ,

- - Q. You heard him say (when they were damning each
" other, and when you were within hearing) to the first mate, that
he had not a-coat to his back when he first came on board 2
A. Yes, I did so. | R P |
" Q, Where there as many to hear what Carter said to the
captain as the captain to him? A, Ishould supposeso.
- Q. Upon your oath, upon Carter’s saying that he was ?Iad
enough to make the vessel any how, as he had been long
enough in the water, did not the captain damn him? A, He
might, but I did not hear him, ' | e

;_.J
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Q. He said, we have been “ four hours in the water,” was

it not so ? A. I don’t know. i 865 ey |

Q. How many hours was it after the whale had stoved the

boat 2 A. Three or four hours. | | |

~ Q. Did not the boat fill with water immediately ? “A. not
immediately.

- Q. Howsoon? A, About a quarter of an hour or less.

Q. So you had three or four hours of being in the water 2

A. About two hours. |
' Q. You were pretty well drenched, were you not?
A. Yes. | - _
Q. If one were to choose between them, which of the two
damned the most lustily ? A. T don’t know. =
Q. You thought your master pretty well versed in that
fangunage, was he not ?  A. He was prett{ well skilled in it.
& 5 Pray was the surgeon sent on shore at any time ?
A. Yes, he was sent in a boat, g ' e
- Q. After Carter had been sent on shore ? A, Yes.
Q. How long did the surgeon remain on shore ? No answer,
Mr. PARK objected to the surgeon’s case being gone into,
(Lllenborough, C. J.) 1f you connect the surgeon with
him, that may make it evidence. '

Q. Did the surgeon return the same day he was carried
on shore ? A. No, I never saw him afterwards.

Q. Having learnt that the surgeon went on shore in the
boat with the plaintiff’s chest; upon your oath, did not the
captain at the time the surgeon went on shore, give express
orders that Carter should not be brought back again, nor touch
that boat ? A. I don’t know, I did not go on board. |

Q. Was you upon deck when the boat with the suroeon
was dispatched to the shore, and the trunk put into it ? A,
Yes, sir. | ' ' p—
' Q. Then I ask you, upon your oath, whether you did not
hear the captain say expressly, that Carter should by no means
be permitted to come back to theship?  A. No, I did not.

Q. You were upon deck at the time ¢ A. Yes. '
Q. And when the boat went off #.° A. Yes.- |
Q. And when the trunk and chest were putin? = A, Yes,
Q). Do you mean now to swear, that (f’ou did not hear the
captain give any orders that Carter should not be permitted to
come on board again? - A. Nojsir. . ° e
| Q. Never, at any time (T A. No,sir; he did not give
any orders to me, | e o
Q. I don’t ask you that; you have been asked about the
Shlp called the Echo; the Echo went with ou 'WhllSt your
carg0 was landing ; did the Echo catch any fish? A, No. -
Q. And you did not catch any fish yourself? A. No, sir.-
Q. Is it necessary that every man should go to catch the
fish? . A. No, sir. _ |
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Q. They -catch them with two boats crews? A, Some-
~ times ; I never recollected two but once or twice.

Q. You had some whales lying alongside the ship, what
side was it? A, The starboard side. |

Q. The side you were ordered to 2 A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did you {ear any observation made by the captain
about those whales, when he abused Carter for -not going to
that side 2 A. Theard the mate tell him, he, the captain,
valued ten barrels of whale oil more than six men’s lives ; that
was about the time when they were hauling the stoved boat up.

Q. Were you in great peril; Were six of you in that
boat 2 = A. Yes. |

Q. And when Underwood went away, you were in consi-
derable danger?  A. We were in fear of being left in the
boat all night, if not picked up before dark. -

_ Q. Ifg you got back to your ship you were then no longer
in any danger? A, No, sir.

Q. Did the water gain upon you after the boat was stoved ?
A. It could not gain after it was sunk. S

Q. Was it suddenly under water?  A. Yes, sir.

Q. And then you were up to the middle in water? A,

We were up to the shoulders, '.
Q. For five hours and a half'? wNoor,

Q. How long were you in that state A, For two
- hours and a half.

- Q. You told us that for the first quarter of an hour yon
did not make much water? .~ A, Immedijately, sir, we began
to make water. |

Q. Then after you began to make water, how long was it
before you got to the ship’s side? How many hours was it be-
fore yon reached the ship that you began to make water ?
A. Four or five hours.

Q. How soon did the water so gain upon you as to sink
your boat in the water?  A. About a quarter of an hour
afterwards.

Q. Then when I supposed you were up to the waists in
the water, you told me you were up the shoulders? A,
Yes, sir® | | e

Q. Then if you were four or five hours before you reached
the ship, how much of the time had you passed in the water ?
A. About two hours. _

Q. You mean till Underwood picked youup? - A, Yes,
SIT,

Q. What became of the captain after he had called for his
istols, and ordered Carter to his cabin A. 1 don’t know ;
weut down to get myself dryed, and to have my supper. '

Q. You saw no more of them that night? 1{) No, sir.
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(Re-examined by Mr, Scarlett.)
Q. You said you were no longer in danger when picked
up by Underwood ¢ A. No, sir, we were not.
Q. The danger was, that you might not be seen and picked
up before it was dark ? A. Yes.
Q. But when once seen, and the boat came to you, there
was no danger ? A. None, unless from bad weather. |
- Q. When Underwood went to get the line, that was by
Carter’s desire, was it ? A. It was by Carter’s assent,
Q. What sort of weather was it ? No answer. "
( Ellenborough, C.J.) Y cannot see the use of going into
all these circumstances, either upon the one side or the other.
(Mr. Park) We must follow up their cross examination,
 (Elenborough, C,J.) 1 don’t know that there 1s occasion
_to follow it up. |
(Attorney General) DBut it remains to be seen who pur-
sued it first, | =
- Q, (By Ellenborough, C. J,) Did Carter, during that
voyage, do his duty assiduously and usefully? A, Yes
Q. Did he in respect to the boat and the men behave as

well as he could in every part of his duty 2 = A, Yes,

Q. (By Mr. Scarlett ) You have been asked whether you
heard the captain give orders that Carter should not be received
on board again ; at the time the boat went, where was the caP;
tain? A, He was on board, | S

Joun EvMmort sworn (Cexamined by Mr. Puller. )
Q. Was you on this day boat steerer to Underwood’s boat ?

A, I was, ,
Q. Do you remember taking the stoved boat in tow, and

then making to the ship ? A. 1 do. |

Q. After you hadp taken that in tow, did you meet the
captain’s boat coming out to you? A, Yes, I did.

Q. Who was in that boat; I mean the captain’s boat ¢

A. Stephen James.
Q. Underwood had the command of your boat ; he was the

superior officer?  A. Yes. |
Q. And then when you- took Carter in, Carter had the

command?  A. Yes. '
Q. Did Stephen James, who came out with the captain’s

‘boat, give any orders, or tell you any thin%‘l;? A. Yes,
Q. What did he tell you? A, That we were to come

on board on the starboard side. |
(Elerborough, C. J.) 1s not that already proved by the

one side and the other?
Mr. Park. Not that he had the order before hand.

Lllenborough, C. J. But he did not obey these orders,

that is most distinetly proved.

F



Q. (by Mr. Puller) When Stephen James came up with
that boat, did you hear him offer assistance ? A, Yes,
Q: What was Carter’s answer? A, 1 cannot exactly say.
Q. Suppose you spoke as if you were Carter?  A.'I
think he said “ goon board and be damned, tell your master that
I say so.”
’ Q. 'He pulled up on the larboard side? . A, Yes.
;. Q. Did Skelton, the Captain, speak to him as to coming
up on that side ? . A, Yes’ '
Q. What did he say?  A. He said, Mr, Carter, why
don’t you come up on the starboard side ? ' _
Q. What answer did Carter give ? A, He said “pull
““ away men, pull away men.”
Q. When Carter only said “pull away men, pull away
“ men,” did Skelton make any observation on the manner in
which he answered him ? A. 1 believe he said, Mr, Carter,
you need not answer me so saueily. o
- Q. Did you observe that night how the ship was lymg
with her sails ? A, Yes, she was lying to, with her head
?arﬂs _aback. - P - e . :
Q. After he had gone on board, were the boats, I mean
Underwood’s boat and the stoved boat, taken round and heisted
on the starboard side?  A. Carter got on board on the lar-
board side, aud after they had got on board, Mr. Carter’s boat
was taken round on the starboard side, and hoisted up, but
Underwood’s boat was taken up on the larboard side.
Q. When you went on board, had Carter held out lights

for the shi‘gj? A. Before we went on board, lights were held out.
' Q. What is the object of that? A. To let the people

- see where the boats are.

Q. So that they prepare for your coming? A, Yes,
they do.

Q. Was there any difficulty or inconvenience in taking up
the boat on the larboard side? A, None at all.

Q. I know not whether you have been long upon these
voyages? A, Yes,sir, D= *

Q. Is that the custom to take in stoved boats on the wind-
ward side ! A, YOS‘., if it be badly stoven.

Q. Is there not danger in taking the men on the larboard
side?  A. There is danger of course, if there be any breeze
of wind,

Q. (By Ellenborough, C. J.) Was there any breeze of
wind upon this occasion?  A. Yes, there was; there is a

danger of the boat getting under the vessel and being over-
turned. |

 wuw. Cross examined by Mr Marryatt.
Q. The boat was very deep in the water?  A. Yes; a

whaling boat is generally sufficiently deep with its own crew



and fishing ‘materials ; .and on this occasion we had double
quantity. it | : | '
(). Was the boat, when 1t approached the ship, on the
Jarboard quarter ? A Yes, o |
A ?—Iow many of the boats company had got out there,
before they went to the whale side to take in the stoved boat ?
A. The whole of the crew of both boats, except myself and
two men. . e
Q. Where they all handed in on the same side? A. Yes,
all that belonged to the stoved boat were handed in on that side.
Q. And after that you and another went round with the
stoved boat to the other side? A, Yes. |
K- Q. And the stoved boat only was taken in on that side?
. Yes,

Q. Was the other boat taken in at all ¥ A. Yes, she
was taken in at her station, on the larboard quarter. e

Q. That was an entire boat? A. Yes.

Q. Where did you get into the ship?  A. Upon the
larboard quarter. |

Q. Then you having gone round to the starboard quarter,
did not get in on that side, but went round to the larboard side
togetin? A, Yes, sir,

Q. What was the reason of that?  A. As the boat be-
longed to that side. v s s _

Q. Your boat was hoisted up to the place where Carter’s
boat formerly stood ? A. Yes,sir. S ot 4

Q. (by Ellenborough, C. J.) The men were got in on the
larboard side, and consulted the captain, and received his
orders as to the stoved boat afterwards? - A. I did not hear
‘what passed,

Q. (by Mr. Puller) If the boat were not very deep In
the water, the danger would not be so great; but m those
cases where it is very. deep, is not the danger much greater;
and in such cases, - what was the side most easily accessible %
A, The starboard side. . | |

Q. (By Ellenborough, C. J.) Were they longer in getting
in on the larboard side than on the starboard side ? A. The
starboard side 1s the easiest. e

..Q. If you had been for getting on board, and you had
thought of nothing but of getting on board for your own safety,
what side - would you have .chosen to have got on board at?
A. The starboard side. Trisah |

._ Q. (by Mr. Puller) Was there any danger to the people ?
A. There was no danger at all. VeI VS

Q. When he received the orders from Stephen' James,
might he have taken either side A. Yes, he might.
_ Q. Was he not nearly a mile off the ship? A, He was
nearly three quarters of a mile from the ship,
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STEPHEN JAMES sworn (examined by Mr. Park.)
Q. What were you on board? . A. I was captain’s boat
steerer. | : o)
* Q. And third mate?  A. No.
Q. Is that vessel; the Albion, since sold ? A. Yes, sir.
Q. You was sent out to the stoved boat? A. I was
sent out to the stoved boat. | '
Q. There were two lights in Underwood’s boat, to make
them on board the ship know that there was a stoved boat in
company ? A, Yes. e
Q. At the time you arrived with the stoved boat,could yon
bave come either to the one side or to the other? = A. Just
as soon to the one side as to the other. ' . '
- Q. What orders did you give to.Carter? . A, To come
to the starboard side with the stoved boat. £
Q. Have you ever been in those seas before? A, Thave.
Q. You have known of stoved boats before ? A. Yes, sir.
Q. Is a'stoved boat generally takén in on the starboard or
~ the larboard side of the vessel ? A. Upon the starboard.

| Q. Why is it so, is it easier? A. Because there is a
gangway which is not on the larboard side. _

Q. When the men had to get out of the boats, they could
have got into the vessel at either side, but their commodities
were easier taken in at the gangway ? A. Yes,

Q. How many men had you in your boat? A, Five
besides myself. | |

). When you told Carter to come in on the starboard side,
what did he say? = A. He said “ be neither wanted my assist-
“ance nor my master’s, and that he might go to hell, and I
might tell my master so.”

Q. How many men were in the boats to hear this? A,
The whole crew of both. | '

., Q. How long was this before you got upto the ship? A,
Ten minutes or a quarter of an hour. 3 |

Q. At that time could he easily have got up on the side to
which the captain ordered him ; was there any danger 5o as to
occasion him going to the one side in preference to the other?
A. I saw no danger. | | 2 s
"~ Q. When you got to the ship, did Carter 2also get to the
ship ? A. Yes, sir. . | b
Q. Did you hear what passed between him and the cap~
tain e A, No. sire - | |

- Q. Was it pretty dark when you got on board?  A.
Yes, SIfe ., g | e
* Q. Did you see Carter walking the deck that night or
~next day *  A. Yes; T saw him that night and next day too,
walkino the quarter deck. | '
- Q. And so continuing till you got to Kenia? A, Yes, sir.
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( Cross-examined by Attorney General.)

Q. Were you one of those who had an offer of a hundred
pounds, providing they would give evidence as to this ship, if
the captain succeeded ? =~ A. _No, SITy Vet 1
Q. Were you an apprentice? A, No, sir; I was boat
steerer. ¥ s 55
Q. “?hat did you hear first Said by the captain when you
aot on board ? A: I heard nothing 3 1 was on the other side,
and heard a noise, but did not hear what it was, o i

Q. No swearing, and no talking of pistols in'your hearing 2
A. I did not hear any thing of that. < M, £

- Q. How long were you in getting on board after Carter
kad got-on board ? A. About twenty minutes, or half an hour.
| Q. Was Carter still on deck? © A, Yes, sir. €

Q. But you never heard you master saymg a word, nor
what the noise was about?  A. He was grumbling about
something, but I did not know what it was about. e

| .(Re-"e:framined by Mr. Park) - 55
Q. On what side did you get up? A, On the starboard side,
Q. Was there any difficulty in that? A, None, sir.

Psscor GAFFER sworn (examined by JMr. Scarlett).
(3. Where you on bord this ship, the Albion? A, Yes, sir.
Q. What were you? - A. I helped to keep the ship.
. Were you the -person who discovered the signals of
Carter’s boat ? A. Tgere werc no signals before the captain:
¢ame on board, - | e
Q. Were you the first person who discovered the signal
of Carter’s boat? A, After the captain came on board, the
captain and myself discovered the signal. MR
Q. Did the eaptain lay the ship too for the purpose of the
boats coming up ? A. Yes, and 1 lent a hand to do it. |
| Y Q. Were you within hearing when Carter came on board 2
A, Yes. - _ i
- Q. How near did you stand to him? A, T was stand~
ing on the main deck. ¥ : £
Q. What was the first thing you heard passed between
Carter and the captain ? A. The first thing I heard was the
captain calling out to Carter to come on the ’sta_ljboard side, and
I heard Caiter say “ pull away,” to the boat’s crew.
Q. And then he came to the larboard side? = A, Yeés,
~ Q. When he had mounted upon. deck, ‘what did you hear
pass? A, The captain was very angry with him fof coming
on the larboard side. irogh - ~
Q. What did he say to him? A, The captain told him
he ought to have obeyed his orders, to g0 on the starboard side.,
Q. What did Carter say to him? A, He said « you
“ wanted to drown me and all the hoat’s crew.” 5
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Q. What did the captain say to him then? A, Carter
said to the captain ‘ you are a damned rascal, and you wanted
“ to drown me and a]Fthe boat’s erew,” | A

Q. I asked you what did the captain say ? A. The
captain told him to go below 1nto his cabm _ |

Q. What did Carter then say ? A. He said he would
not go below,. . - . |
£ Q. Well, what then ? A, The captain then collared

im. | -
Q. When Carter said he would not go below, the captain
collared him? A, Yes, sir.

Q. Did Carter eollar the captain ? A, Yes, sir.

Q. (by Ellenborough, C, J.) And shook him ? A. Yes.

Q. Be on your guard ; de you say you saw Carter collar
the captain ¢ A. Yes, my lord, and shook him.
kS Q. (by M. Scarlett.) Carteris a very stout man? A,

es, Sir. _ 2 Aorbil s -

Q. How near was you standing to him ? A. I was
upon the main deck where they were. .

7 Qe Wasat-dark then? . A. Yes. -

A After Carter shook him, what then passed.? A. The

captain called aft for the crew 1o come and pull him below.
Q. Was that when Carter had hold of him? A, Yes,sir.

. A By Ellenborough, C. J.) Whereabouts did he take
hold of him? A, By the breast.

2. - Q. How long did he keep hold of lum ? A. T cannot
say exactly. [l : QIOW < '

Q. How nearly can you say? = A, Two or three
miﬁﬂtﬂsi- - E.. T TR G N o
Q. (By M. Scarletty. Was it when Carter had hold of
him that the captain called out for assistance? = A. Yes, sir,
. Q. Did any of the erew come to assist him? A, None
but the second mate Underwood went nigh to him.

- Q.. And what did Carter say to Underwood? A, He
said “ Don’t you lay hold of me, or else I'll make you remember

‘:E ;it-’,

Q. What did the Captain say then? . A. The captain
then ealled for his pistols. - > v .. ! S
| Q. What did Carter say? A. He said he had pistols
t00. - . - :3 | Bertoiy Tov Ky Snitls b
Q. What then 2 A.. Then he let him go, and ordered
the boat’s crew to come along the other side. .o 7.«
+ Q. Wholet him go? -~ A. The captain let ' Carter go,
and told him.to go below, but he would not. - - $l
Q. Did he remain on deck afterwards 2 , * A, Yes, .

o Qe Did you see him on deck that evening? - A, Yes.
o0 Qu By Lllenborough, C.J.)  Did he go below at all ?
A. 1-cannot say whether he did or not, as we were not on deck
all the time he stayed. ; = 2 -
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| - Q. (By Mr. Scarlett) Don’t you recollect that he wetit
below and came up again s A: O! yes, for ten minutes or a
quarter of an hour, he went below, and then came up again,
Q.  Did he remain long after he came from below 2 A, [
cannot say how long. L AN
Q. Did you see him on deck the next day? A, Yes.
Q. Did he continue to go upon deck as any other of the
men did or might do till you got to Kenia? A, Yes. ;
Q. (By Ellenborough, C. J.) Did he behave ill when on
deck?  A. He never said a word to any body.
Q. (By Mr. Scarlett) Do you remember any thing
grassing between the captain and Carter as to a boy? = A,

Yes, the captain called a boy for a witness.
Q. What did he say ? A, He said “ I want a witness

“ on account of all this bad usage.”

Q. Upon his doing that, do you recollect Carter doing or
saying any thing? ~ A. Yes, he got hold of the least boy in
the ship, and shoved him towards him, and said take this boy as
a witness,

Q. Was that before the captain collared him or afterwards 2
A, 1t was afterwards. . .

B  (Cross examined by Attorney Generally = .
- Q. You say the captain wanted a witness of all this bad
langnage? A, Yes. ,
Q. He had you for a witness and he needed not to have
wanted any other; did you hear any bad language from the
captain to Mr. Carter? A. No, 1 did not hear any bad

language from the captain; perhaps he might have stated a
wrong word or two, but I heard twice as much which My, Carter

gave to the captain. | s .
Q. Then there was a little from the ecaptain o Carter?

A. There was a little.

Q. I wish you to recollect a little of it if you can? You
are sure that Carter took the captain by tl}ﬁ breast and shook
him very severely ; nobody could fail of seeing that if they were
there ? A. No, sir. +:

Q. Did the captain say, when he called a witenss, « Noy
“ 1 wish you to see Eow this man shakes me or has shakep me.,”

Did he say this to the whole crew? ~ A. 1 did not hear him.
Q. It was after he shook him for two or three minutes?

A, Yes. . :
Q. And Carter is stouter than the Captam ? A, Yes,
Q. Was younot afraid your captain would be very much
hurt by this shaking for two or three minutes? A, 1 did not
know whether he hurt him or not.
Q. But the captain said 1 want witnesses of this bad
language ? A, Yes, sir. -
Q. Pray, just to be a little more certain, did you hear the



eaptain-say to Carter, “ Why, sir, you should not give yaurself
* such airs; as you had not a coat to your back when I first knew.
“ vomE . ... No,.... T RN |

-~ Q. Did you hear any thing of that kind said by any body ¢
A. No, sir. '

Q. Upon your oath did you not hear the captain say so?
A. No, sir. |

Q. That could not pass without your hearing of it?2 = A,
) cannot say the thing that I did not hear., .

Q. Was you near enough to hear that? You said you
were as near to them as to that wall or to me now ? A. Not
quite so near., ’ - S -

Q. They talked very low when they were damning one
another? . A. Sometimes they talked very low, and some-
times they did not. - -

. Q, How many days after this was it before the captain
got the shore boat to come and carry this gentleman on shore ?
A. About four or five days. 3 .
' Q. And how soon after he had sent him on shore did you
:ﬁmtl his frunk and chest? - A. It was abouat two hours after
at. , B S-S PR AR R e e e

Q. Upon your oath, did you hear the captain give orders
to the boat’s crew not to allow Carter to come on board again
upon any account whatever? A, No, sir. .

Q. Was that when the surceon went?  A. Yes, sir. -

- Q. Was you on deck when they went off? A. Yes,sir.

Q. You all expected Mr, Carter back again did you?
A. Yes, sir, we all expected him to come back; we expected
him to make it up, and that he would come back. ~ ~

Q. Did the captain sayso? A, No, but we thought so.

Q. Did you not ask the captain, when you were going off,

whether you were to leave this chief mate amongst the Malays ¢

Did you not say to him we hope you won’t do so, and have you
not made it up together?  A. We asked no such thing.

Q. You came offand lefthim?  A. Yes. k<4

Haxs P. Hexsox sworn (evamined by Mr. Puller)

Q. Where were you in the ship when Carter came on
- board that evening ? A. T was upon the deck of the ship.

Q. How soon did you see him after he first came on board ?

A. In a few minutes, :
Q. It was dusk was it ? A, Yes. e
Q. Before he came on board he had been hailed2 - A.
 { TR R e :
(). He said he wanted to get on board? A, Yes.
Q. What did the captain say? = He told him not to be
so sulky ahout it, but to come on board. - A
Q. W hat was it the captain said he should not be so sulky
about # A, The captain said, as his boat was stoved that he
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should come on board on the starboard side ; the captain said
don’t be so sulky, as he, Carter, had spoken a little roughly.
Q. On the captain saying that to Carter, what did Carter
say to the captain?  A. They damned one another I believe,
Q. Did he call the captain any names? A. 1 don’t
recollect the names, but he said, damn your eyes who are you, or
something like that, | ¥
- Q. (By Ellenborough, C.J.) Who began paying that
Eompliment to the other's eyes?  A. I believe Mr. Carter
egan. '
® Q. Buthave you any confident recellection by which yo
ean say, upon oath, that he said so to bim before the captain said
any thing to him? A, Yes, when the captain asked the
reason why he did not come on board on the starboard side, he
said 1 wanted to get on board the ship any how.
Q. (By Mr. Puller) Did he speak that in aciyil or rough
manuner?  A. In a rough manner. | »
Q. Was it after that that the captain remonstrated with him
‘as to being sulky?  A. Yes. |
Q. You said that you believe that Carter began using the
bad language to the captain, and not the captain to Carter ?

A. Carter was the first beginner 1 believe.

Q. If you can, tell us any of the wordshe used, I wish
vou would ? A. He called hun a damned rascal or scoundrel,
or something like that,

Q. What did the captain say to that? A. 1 don’t
recollect every word he said. | |

Q. Did he do any thing to him? Did the captain do any
thing to Carter?  A. The captain shook Mr. Carter.

Q. Was that after he had used those words 2 A. Yes.

Q. Did the captain call for any body#  A. Yes, he
called for assistance. | - | s g

Q. When the captain shook Carter, what did Canter do ¥
A. T cannot exactly say. S
' Q. It was near enough to hear, and you heard the words
passing between them ?  A. The captain called for assistance,

and Carter said “ here is one of your assistants,” ppinting to one

of the little boys. . .
Q. Did any body go to his assistance?. A. Yes, Mr,

Underwood. , *
Q. When he went up, what did Carter say to Mr, Under-
wood? A, T could not exactly know ; 1 believe Carter gaid
to Underwood that he should not make himself too busy,
_ Q. Was it light epough_for you to see how, in point of
fact, he addressed himself to Underwood ¢ A, No, sir
Q. When none of the crew came to his assistance, did the
captain call for any thing?  A. No, 1 don’t know. |
- Q. Did he give Carter any orders to do any thing®? A
He told him to go below. £ ' =
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** Q. Did he go below? A, I cannotsay so. .
- Q. Did you sece him upon deck afterwards ? A. No, 1

don’t think T did. _ -

Q. Was he from time to time on deck till you went'to

Kenia? A, Yes. | -

. Illenborough, C. J. 1t shows there was no danger from

Carter’s being on board,

| Mr.Park. We are acting erroniously, if your lordship
judges as vou seem to do. -

| Q. (by Mr, Puller.) Did you see Carter do any thing at
any time to the defendant? = A, Nothing of any harm.

Q. Was there any talk of taking him any where ? A.
Yes, the captain said he would take him into the first English
port he came to.

- Q. What did Carter say to that? A. He said he did not

‘care how soon ; he might do so as soon as he pleased.

Q. After this quarrel, you went to Kenia?  A. Yes.

Q. (By Ellenborongh, C. J.) Did you hear any such
~words fall from Carter when he first came on board, as that be

“was glad to get hold of the ship in any way, as he had been
JON S CHOU ST TN WHTEIT - 20, TO T T (e o

CaptAaIN WaITTENS sworn (examined by Mr, Park.)

Q. You were commander of the ship licho® A, Yes.

Q. In December,1812¢  A. Yes.

Q. ‘Were you in company with the ship Albion?  A.

Yes, I fell into company with her. -

| - Q. You were a*whaler also ? A. Yes. |
Q. In consequence of what Captain Skelton told you (but

1 don’t ask you what it was) did you go with him to l%enia, in

“the island of Celebes?  A. Yes, I was making the best of my

~way to that gort_when I met him.

- Q. Did you go to the house of Governor Neys? A.

Yes, | went there with him. - '

| Q. We have seen a letter which the governor wrote to the

mate ; was that written after the captain told his story 2 A. Yes.

= (). He stated something to the governor, in consequence

of which the letter was sent ? A. Yes; he first sent a verbal

~“message to the governor, and thena letter, and then the gover-

nor wrote to Carter. |

- Q. At that time, and in your presence? A. Yes, 1

- heard the letter read in my presence.

Q. Carter came in consequence thereof ?. A, Yes, he did.

Q. Were you present when he came before this® gentle-

~man, MviNeys 2 A, Yes. % &

Q. In_ the presence of this gentleman and Carter, did

~Coptain Skelton repeat his complaint, and say what it was ?
‘;“":ﬁ.;- He‘_ dld- ' : & | |
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~ Q. -Did Captain Skelton, in the presence of Carter, make
any application to you to take him on board? A. After .
Carter was on shore; Captain Skelton asked me if I would give
hiﬂil] a passage in niy ship, which I said I would, and offered it -
to him, | - : Bl i ot e

- Q. What did Carter say to that offer? A. He refused it,
Q. How did he refuse 1t?  A. I only know that he re~
fused it. - ' 2R

Q. What did he say, as nearly as you can recollect? A,
- He said he should make Captain Skelton pay for his passage .
home. - '
Q. When he said that, did you hear Captain Skelton make
any offer, to enable him to go any other way?  A. I heard
him offer money to the resident, in order to procure him a pass-
age to Amboyna, or to Europe, or wherever he chose to go, or
to pay his expences during the time he was there.

- Q. Thatwas also refused?  A. The governor said it was
not necessary, for that he might dine or mess with him every
day while he remained there.

Q. Do you recollect the governor saying, or interfering,
any thing at all about Captain Skelton and Mr. Carter being
reconciled ? A. Yes, I do; I wasrthe person that put the
question to him, that I wished to see whether he would make it
up with Captain Skelton, with whom, I and the governor had
prevailed upon tp make it up with him. - L o

Q. What did Captain Skelton say?  A. Captain Skelton
said that if he would ask. his pardon before the ship’s com-
pany, before whom he had degraded him, he would consent
to do ro, | | “
| Q. What said Carter to that?  A. He said he would
not 3 he would do no such thing, but that as he had thought
proper to ‘But him on shore, there he would remain.

- Q. "Was there any thing' said about doing duty again on
board the ship ? A. There was. i T

Q. 'What was it ? A, The captain said that if he re-
turned on board the ship and did his duty as a man, he would
hear nothing more about the matter. A '

Q. (By Lllenborough, C.J.) Did the captain give up
the condition he had stipulated. at first as to the apology A.
“No, my lord. . AT o

Q. (By Mr. Park.) What sald'CaIiter to the proposed
condition, as to the apology # . A. He said he would not ask
his parden. Ly e o3l L Y 2
e o Q. Had you an officer on board your ship called Ford ?
A. Yes: - rs - | '

Q. He was your second officer? A, Yes,

Q. _D_id Skelton make any offer to get that person on
on board his ship. in the room of Carter ? A, Yes, he asked
me if I would let him go. . :
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r Attorney Geneéral, 1 object to this, as ot being proper
evidence. = o™ ,_ |
My, Park. This has been said to have been done from
improper motives; and I know that he endeavoured to get
QIIOthel‘ to Sllpp] his plaCE. “ _ | .
- Attorney General. My objection is to any thing done by
Skelton behind my client’s back, béing brought forwaid as evis
dence. : | _

Ellénborongh; C. J, Tt was already proved that Under=
wood was not a man of equal skill; and therefore it might put
him to mconvenience, so that it appears he was endeavouring
to o'et another. :

. Q. Do you recollect any thing being said about the lo
gnok before the govertor, and in the presence of Mr. Carter !
A. Yes

Q. What-was said about the log book ? A, Captain
Skelton asked him if he knew any tﬁing about the log book,
and if he had got it in his chest, _ | g 1

. What said he to that? . A. He said he knew nothing -
about the log book; and if he had, it was his own property, and
he should keepit. = =
Q. Did Captain I%kﬂt? mention to Carter his reason for
wishing this? A, He said that the log book was the ship’s
property, and he stood in need of it. _

Q. He did not deliver it? A, He said he knew nothing
of it. _ .

. _{Cross-examined by Attorney Generut.) -

Q. Do you net know that when this person was seduced
on shove he went without book or trunk; or any thing, when he

wae gent from on board, as has been described, by means of
this defendant? A, 1 knew that he had nothing but what he
stood up in

Q. (By Elenborough, C. J.) Did you see his things
come on shore afterwards? ~ A. Yes, to the governor’s house.

Q. How'soon 'did yon come to England®  A. I arrived
on the 10th of August; 1813, 2 ST

Q. (By Mr. Park, throwgh Ellenborough, C. J.) Arve
iou ;ﬁwainteﬁ with the mode of bringing up stoved boats ?

B es; . ' -

Q. What is the proper side to bring them up on? A,
The 'starboard side, that being to the Windward. N

Q. But cuppovxe there were three whales lying along that
side of the vessel ? A, There would be no objection n the
' Q' Supposing the men had been in the stoved beat for
several hours'in the water, do you suppose they would stand
upon much ceremony upon what side they should come wp on ?
A. No,my lord, but there is no move difficulty in geiting 1n on
the starboard side than upon the larboard side, £~



Q. Then'do you think they had no motive in taking the
farboard side in preference to the starboard side, but the pleas
sare of disobeying the captain’s orders? A, T cannot cons
céive that there could be any motive for taking the one in pree

ference to the other.

CaprraiNy BristALL sworn (examined by Mr. Puller) -~
| Q. How long have you been engaged in the whale fishery®
A, Twenty-five years, _ |

Q. Have you heard all the evidence that has been given,.
as to this business 2 A. Yes ; 1 was in those seas when 1t
took place. . ._

- Q. In your judgment, what is the proper side to take on
board a stoven hoat 2 A. The windward, the starboard,

Q. Is that a general rule ? A, It is general; there 1§
no other rule. - ' Tl __ __

Q. Is there any danger in taking it in on the larboard side 2.
A. It is not so convenient, as the bulwark lays in the way. In
fact, during the twenty-five years I have been in the South Seas,
I never saw a stoven boat taken in to the leeward, but always
to the windward ; when it is otherwise, you run a chance of
losing' the boat, but you avoid the sacrifice by taking it up on
the starboard side. A stoven boat is a very rare thing here,
and people cannot be accustomed to them in Londen, but it isa
common thing in the South Seas. A stoven boat” will carry a
crew just as well as another. 1 conceive, myself, that there was
no danger. | _ P

Q. Is it a general rule; was there any thing that you have
heard to have prevented them from going on board on the stare

board side 2 A. None at all.

( Cross exasnined by Atiorney General.) _
Q. The defendant’s counsel appear to have taken you for
their client, you have been so eagerall this day? (No answer,
as Mr. Park complained of this)

CapTAIN BricH sworn (examined by Mr. Park.) .

Q. How many years have you been in the whale fishery
trade 2  A. About thirty. * :

Q. Ts the starboard side of a vessel the proper side to take

in stoven boats?  A. Yes, the weather side is always the side

for taking in stoven boats. _ Bl B e
Q. You have always known it to be so during your expe-

rience? A, Yes. | A

Q. It is a common thing to happen by the stroke of a fish 2
A. Tt is very common. |

Q. There is no-danger in a stoven boat so long as the
%eolale remain in her,s0 as t0 keep her from npsetting?  A.

-

here is no danger,
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Q. Is it not a common thing for the men to be many hours
inder water in that situation? A, I have been several hours
myself in that situation, i ; .

=% Q. Tam glad it has made no difference as to your health
and appearance 3§ would they not have been on board as soon:
by goin2 to the one side as on the other? A, Sooner by going
tp the windward ; the boat that is towing' the stoven boat must
come up first, and therefore there is danger in going upon the
Jarboard side that the stoven boat would come under the vessel
which would knock her to pieces.

, ( Cross examined by Aitorney General. ) |
~- - Q. You think a stoven boat rather an agreeable thing, do
yous I suppose you persnade yourself that it is an excellent
cold bath, and you seem to thrive with it from your healthy
appearance? A, I have bathed sometimes for the benefit of
my health ; I might go in a stoven boat and sit there for hours
for amusement, - | -

Ellenborongh, C. J. These gambels in the Pacific Ocean
are not any sort of amusement here. ' -

CCarT, WiLLIANM STEVENS $w00rn (examined by Mr. Puller)
| Q. How many years have yon been engaged in the whale
fishery? - A. About twenty-five years in the southern fishery,
and six or seven in the nothern fishery.

- Q. Upon what side would you take on board a stoven boat ?
A. Upon the windward side ; the reason is evident, for if you
take a stoven Boat alongside of a shis; upon the lee side she

would go richt down with the crew under the ship ; 1 have seen
instances of that myself, and have been in that situation myself.

- (Here the deposition of Michael Underwood was put in and
partly read.) _

e o0 Mr. MarLes sworn (examined by Attorney General)
Q. You produce this deposition?  A. Yes.
Q. Have you examined any other persons upon interroga=
tories? . A. Yes. | '
- Q. How many ? A. One other. nis 9
Q. What was his name? A, Samuel Grew; yod have
his deposition. GV 8 .
My, Park. Ihave no objection toreading it if my learned
friend wave his objection as to the interest. That is my case.

it i e

e ¥ ATTORNEY GENERAL. M ay it please your lordship. Gen-
tlemen of the jury ; my learned friend hasread to you only one
of his deposi tions, but I wish it to be understood that he owns
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‘e holds possession of two; and 1 beg you also to understand
that I was no reading something affirmatively, which bas or could
be negatived ; or that I was informing you that a man was stating
one thing, when he in fact, was stating another; so much for
depositions. I shall now proceed to make some observations
upon this case, which as I have stated in my opening, I thought
was one in all its aspects, not only of vast interest to the indivi-
dual, but also great importance to the interests of commerce
and the navigation of the country, and to every man who puts
his foot on board of any ship to go from hence upon a fomiin
- voyage ; if I thought so originally, when I was first stating the
facts to you, I think it is much more so now, and 1 think there
has been a most disgraceful experiment to lead you into a very
~ fatal error, tending much against the interest of every one con-
cerned in the administration of justice. You’ll observe that the
relative sitnation of the parties is, that the defendant is the
master of the ship, the Albion, engaged in a whaling adventure
to the South Seas, and having known the plaintiff in former
years in which he had employed him, he again places him in the
predicament of being next in command to himself, thereby
placing him as a Persgn on whom all this important adventure
(84

might be entrusted (yielding no less than a nett profit of £16,100)
for in case of any accident harpening to the defendant, the care
of all this property and of all the lives of the persons on board

were to devolve to him. These two parties are engaged for »
considerable number of months together, during which it stands
undenied, as part of the defendant’s case, that this person not
only conducted himself without giving offence; but also that he
-was a most experienced and very valuable officer, so_that the
loss of him might be conceived to be a much greater loss than
that of a stoven boat, although after being up to the chin in
water for hours, and he himself being interested in this adven-
ture, he having a right to a 28th part of these profits; he goes
- out in search of whales, and a thing occurs which I understand
is very common upon those occasions, namely, a fish struck the
boat in which this ‘man, the plamtiff’ was, and disabled it so
that in the space of a quarter of an hour the ‘persons in that
boat were up to the shoulders in water, and so they remained for
- a considerable time, till it suited the convenience of the captain
- to send another boat to their assistance, and such is the character
- of the plaintiff that, when the person so sent came to assist him,
he says, * No, we don’t want your assistance, but go further in
- your boat and try to save the line and the harpoon, it Will be
~ * time enough for us to get assistance after these articles are

“ saved.” Feeling as much as those grinning philosophers who
are now in the offing (alluding to some of the witnesses who
- had been called for the defendant, and who were still in court)
- I confess 1 could not, upon such an occasion, have stooped low

~enough, nor have pulled off my hat low enough, had I been in
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‘a similar predicament with this plaintiff to this captain —this
lord of the Southern Ocean. It seems, however, that when Mr,
- Carter was sitting in this stoven boat up to the shouiders in
water, he was perfectly fearless of danger, for he remains there
with his partners in danger till Underwood the second mate
could return to him; they remained in the apprehension
subsequently that they must be cut off from all assistance, by
the influx of water and the approach of darkness, and they were
at last attached to a towing boat, instead of being left to their
fate, It happened that upon the starboard side of the vessel
there were three or four whales, and notwithstanding that, yet
we find these philosophers stating (as we may suppose such
philosophers would be likely to state, they being generally
shallow enough, and conceited in proportion as they are shallow)
that that was the most convenient side for this person, Carter,
to house himself and his people, after encountering the dangers
from which they had escaped ; he however chuses the larboard
side, as bemg the most easy and convenient to save their lives,
and then the stoven boat is got up with the tackle on the other
side. Theinstant that the plaintiff comes upon deck, according
10 some -O'E ‘the HMM_&A—M W-'Frum this m,
Skelton is, * Don’t give yourself any airs Mr, Carter,” and
according to others, “ How dare you (g;'sobey my orders,” and
again according to others this Mr. Skelton is heard damning
him pretty heartily for this supposed disobedience of orders;
according to all of them Carter’s answer to this insulting
language was merely, “ I was glad to get on board as soon as 1
“ could, as I have been long enough in the water;” he is thus
speaking of his own personal feelings, and the means which he
saw were the most ready and convenient for getting on board,
leaving a certain prf}]l:}ortion of that double crew who had not
been up to the shoulders i water for several hours together, as
he and his crew had been, that is leaving Underwood’s crew
and Stephen James’s crew, who were amply suflicient to take
the stoven boat at any particular place which this magnanimous
captain desived. It a})pears, Mr, Carter was then desired by
Skelton ¢ Not to be sulky ;” upon which (and this is a strong
circumstance in favor of Carter) this is the observation that
escapes him, « It you Mr. Skelton think that a barrel of whale
% oil, or a dead whale, is to be put into competition with the
% lives of six men, it is high time to leave off whaling.” Now I
pray you, gentlemen, can you name an officer i ‘the British
navy to whom, if that expression had been used, it would have
given offence under such circumstances? Who is there amongst
them who would descend to call the man next i authority and
command to themselves, and in the hearing of those whoare to
be commanded, * Damned rascal and scoundrel 3” Ifwe judge
" ‘from this and also from appearances (pointing at the defendant
who sat under him) there can be no doubt that this master,
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Qkelton, is well skilled in the language of Billingsgate, and that he
are his abuse upon this gentleman, whether there were

would nots . .
it forth or not; well, but the calptain is not satisfied

cause for calling | _
with inere abuse, but upon this he collars the plaimntiff, and accord-

ing to the evidence of some of the witnesses, the plaintiff, being a
stouter man than himself, shook him off, and then this mighty
captain lustily calls out for his crew to give him assistance ; Mr,
Underwood, upon that comes up, and Carter says to him, “ Don’t
t you interfere,” and it will blow over; that is the construction
he seems to have put upon it and Underwood upon this leaves
them as they werej I have no doubt that Underwood would
have said so here, if we had had him. The captain bemg still
intent upon further insults, next lustily calls out for his pistols ;
what was he going to do? Was he going to act like another
Paul Jones, and to blow the brains out of the person next him
in authority, or of any one who he thought was inclined to
disobey his mighty orders? Or was he to teach all men the
propriety of not raising their voice agaist men of power?
or did he mean to fioht a duel, and thereby to display his
courage upon the main deck of this South Sea whaler? 1

rather think he meant to do nothing but to bully the man whom

he wrongfully imagined had insulted him, and to make him
no longer of any use on board, God forbid that Englishmen
should feel so calm and indolent on such an oceasion, when so

insulted by anather with pistols, as not to answer as Mr. Carter
did upon this occasion, he answered, ¢ Let it be recollected

« that if pistols are to be had recourse to, I in my turn have my
# pistols and can use them too,” After this empty display of
courage, this hold captain ordered Mr, Cgrt_er to his cabin, to
which he retires, and spent some time in drying his clothes,
which had been so completely drenched in this salutary bath,
which these gentlemen philosophers, these sovereigns of the
Southern Ocean who have been witnesses here to day, trusting
no doubt to their own internal blubber (two of the witnesses
were very fat men) say is =0 wholesome to theiwr constitutions,
They then discontinue fishing, and after several days they
arrive off this island of Celebes, in the Indian Ocean, What 1s
the course which this overbearing captain then pursues? What
monstrous absurdity and impudence 18 dls(flayed in this defence !
He desists from fishing, although he had no less than twentya
‘seven hands on board, and for why ? Because forsooth he is
afraid of leavino this man, the P}_ﬂiﬂ“fﬁ_ﬂﬂ board, for, if he does,
he thinks he will run away with the _shlp, and then there would
be an end of all the interest he has in the concern ; he dare not

o a fishing, in case he lcave this tremenduous mutineer on
%oard, without he himself being there to keep him in awe, and
in case he should prove to be 2 robber and a pirate, or in case
he might run away with the boat in the Southern Ocean, and

have suffered his crew to escap?lso that they might have been



Ieft short handed. When they get to this Dutch island, with a
Dutch resident, iny worthy friend the defendant goes behind
the back of the plaintiff and tells his own story, and mere than
that, he writes his own letter, which I should have liked to have
seen, and he procures this Dutch resident or this governor,or
by what ever title he may be calléd, to do what? To put his
powers of magistracy mto execution; to execute an inquiry,
and to summon the officers of the Echo and the remaining
officers of the Albion, and to collect as numerous a court of
justice as he could? Is that the course he pursues? No, this
Captain Skelton and Captain Whittens find their way to the
governor, and tell their own story, and write their own letter ;
what is the story they make ? Captain Skelton is afraid: of a
double-barrelled pistol if he keep this mutineer on board another
night. Is there any thing like a reguiar complaint entered, is
there any christian-like complaint made ¢ Is there any of that
procedure which belongs to every British subject in every part
ot the globe? Thank God that in- every case of complaint
regularly made against a British subject, there is a meeting of
the accuser and the accused face to face, so that the latter may
know the accusation made, and may be able to give an answer
to it'; but no, mo-such thing-happens-here. ~THis" complaisant
governor or Dutch resident writes from his court an ivitation to
Mr. Carter, in 2 manner equally polite as if he had been begging
the pleasure of his company to dinner; he writes to him, that
he, as governor, in consequence of the representation of Captain
Skelton, begs to see Mr. Carter on shore as early as possible.
Is Mr. Carter informed in that invitation, or polite summons,
that the object of this letter is to kidnap him, and that he who
is concerned to the extent of one twenty-eighth part of £16000.
the proceeds of this voyage, is to be induced to leave this ship,
and then left in that island to find his way home as well as he
can ? No, but the letter of invitation comes from the resident to
him by soldiers, we are to suppose, for the purpose of adding
greater state to the mvitation. Carter, upon this,  consults the
second mate, who was then in command, as to what he is to do
upon it; Mr. Underwood, who fishes in these troubled waters,
does not at first connive in these proceedings, and is ata loss to
give an answer, but afterwards says, that as it is the captain’s
positive orders he, Carter, had better go on shore. As the
plaintiff conceived he might do that with perfect impunity, he
does not put his trunk or any thing else into the boat with him,
but he appears at the bar of this tribunal, constituted ina .
manner in which, thank God, no British tribunal is constituted ;
a tribunal constituted by a Dutch governor sitting as president,
. assisted with his #wo learned assessors, Captain Whittens who
recommended the measure, and Captain Skelton who is accuser,
witness, and executioner of the sentence which is to be pro-
nounced. Such 1s the tribunal before whom this gentleman is
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brought, and which is to pass judgment of banishment againsg
him for a season from his native land, to the extinction of his
best hopes and expectations, and to the destruction of his
character as a nautical man for all time to come ; and how de
they proceed ? Precisely as such a tribunal may be supposed to
proceed ;' a perfect contrast, thank God, to a!l thgt belongs to
the judicature which his established and practiced m this happy
country ; for, was there any body called who could give any
account of the manner in which this man, Carter, was insulted,
and in which is authority was rendered of no avail, by the
scandalous and outrageous econduct of him who was denominated
his superior officer on board? Be that as it may. However, we
find atlength that Captain Whittens is to become the mediator;
when I desire to have a mediator, I should be inclined to have
one who was not a partizan and an adviser of these wregular
proceedings, a partizan of the man between whom and me he
1s to mediate ; oh! but the governor or resident is to become
one too, and to effect the object of Captain Skelton as it were
by a hidden power. What is the course then which they
pursue  Precisely that which you might expect from him, of
whom my learned friend was desired to state as a proof of his
moderation and kindness, namely, that when 1 complain of this
cgentleman he had endeavoured to load him with biessings, but
this man could not see what was really for his good ; there was
a mist before his eyes, and he fancied that those who wished
him goed were meditating mischief; just so would I have
~ thought had I been in his place. This man who is treated as a
scoundrel, and ealled so on board of ship, is told that he shali
be permitted to go back and pass a number of months, requisite
to get to Europe, on board that same ship; but is he told
so without any condition being imposed? No, on the contrary,
is not the most degrading and insulting condition suggested, and
one which is the least of all others to be endured by any man
who has the least drop of true English blood in his veins? He
is told - # If you go back on board the sllig, and in the presence
“ of myself and my. crew, beg my pardon for the manner jp
“ which you have insulted me in their presence, I'll forgive you
“ a]l, and you'll hear no more of it.” . Does it appear from this
that the captain thought that it was not sate nor secure to hayve
this man on board ¢ Yes, he pretended he did so at one time,
but now he was perfectly willing to ;take all that respo.nsibi]ity
and risk of insecurity :E(m'himself, if the mate would get down
aupon his knees and make himself an ‘idolator, and heg pardon
of that power whose insolence bad rendered him in Lis own
judgment irresistable.  There 1s nobody but can see that the
language of the mate was the language of a man who complained
a little of what he was suffering, and of what he considereq ¢
irvegular, but. this magynificent captain thought proper first 1,
provoke him with insults, and then to call for witnesses as to
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ahy thing he might afterwards say. The langitage of the niats
was no such thing as insulting.  No, says Carter, in answer to
this proposal; “?shall not beg pardon of you, from whom I
“ am entitled to receive something' that might cure my wounded
“ spirity and remedy the injuries which you inflicted upon me;
““ from thé moment you insultéd me when coming along side
“ of the ship in the stoven boat; were I to make an apology to
“ you, utider such tircumstances; I am sure there is not a cabin
“ boy nor a scullion who would not despise me for doing so.”
Then says Captain Skelton, * If you do not like to go with me
““ upon such a condition, I will get you a passage on board of
“ Captain Whitten’s ship; * No;” replies the plamtfl, “ that
“ I shall not agree to eiiher, for when you come back to
“ Englatd you’ll take this as a means of condemnation against
“ myself—you’ll state this to the world as an acknowledgment
“of my guilt; and 1 shall not be paid for the months of labour
“ and fatigue, dangers and anxieties which I have suffered, no;
“ no ;—no submission on my part, 1 claim my rights; if I am to
“ be returned upon the main deck of that vessel in which 1 am
“ concerned I must not be degraded at all.”  Now, gentlemen,
you see what a kind man Captain Whittens is ; he is so kind as
not only to afford assistance to his Duich excellency m helping
to form his tribunal, but also is so humane as to endeavour to
mediate between these partiess Then follows another propo-
sition of the part of Captain Skelton, “if,” sayshe, * you wont
“do that, 'll then propose this, I'll lodge a sum of money in
¢ the hands of his Dutelh extelleney to support you here, or to
“ convey you to Amboyuia, so as to afford you the best means of
“ procuring a conveyance home.” The answer is, *“ no, no, this
¢ 15 all cajollary; in order to take me in ; this is to insult me and
“ also to deprive of my rights, for if you leave me here by this
“ your sentence of exile, you think you’ll be entitled to my 28th
“ share of this property which you are carrying to England;
“don’t give me this as a boon when you are warding off the
“ punishment of your injustice, when some day or other you'll
“ be called to account for the injustice you have already done
“ me)” Remember; gentlemen, Mr, Carter said, “I'll make
% Captain Skelton pay me my expences;” and remember also
what he said when Captain S’ielton proposed to leave him at the
first British settlement he came to ; he answered him by saying,
“ that is what T wish.” Talk of English justice and I ask no
more, but when you find this captain bringing Mr. Carter to his
Dutch exeellency, he (the plamtift’) then saw his object, but
says he, “ I'll make you pay for your injustice in these proceed-
“ings, and for every other injury which you have inflicted
“ upon me.” Itis the great consolation of every British subject
at a distance from home, when he finds himself OIHJIESSBd by
any of his countrymen, that he keeps in his mind’s eye the
chance he has of having recourse to this sanctuary of justice ;
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e knows that the longest day of oppression and injustice must
have it's end; he knows that if he only survive the injuries
inflicted, and shall come here o tell his tale, the powerful and
the weak must meet here upon equal terms, the oppressor has
no advantage over the OppI‘ES§Ed3 but t_hat‘you hoﬁf the scales
equally balanced, in order to distribute justice to every man as
he deserves. Now, gentlemen, what is this case which is here
brought before you, for I will not fatigue you with further obser-
vations ? It is a case, in which, without any founda‘ion in fact for
any charge against this man; without any apprehension of danger
likely to acerue from him to anybody ; without any possibifity
of being encumbered by permitting this gentleman to remain
on board his ship; the defendant adopts these means which
have been described, in order to entrap and kidnap the plaintiff
from on board the Albion to this island in the Fndian Ocean.
The plaintiff, you'll observe, is part owner of this cargo along
with the defendant and others, and so far from being allowed to
accompany his property in the Albion, he has been putto great
difficulties even in finding his way from this island, which
is thinly peopled, and low in point of supplies; he had to pro-
ceed to Amboyna to get on board a vessel to bring him here ;
these expences will be items in his demand. There is only one
other pomt upon which I shall touch. My learned friend says,
what motive could Captain Skelton have for all this? 1 answer
his guestion by retorting ; 1 cannot tell what can operate as an
inducement to a purse proud domineering man for so exercising
his authority, Those who have authority will do well to keep
themselves even handed, for nobody can refuse to obey a just
authority when it is exercised with leniencg, and when those
whose duty it is to obey are treated with kindness; there 1s no
danger to be apprehended from British seamen when they are
treated with kindness, and their obedience insured by eircum-
spection and care. What motive had thisman? 18 the question
which my learned friend puts; I answer that the probable
motive which he might have was, the keeping in his own pockets;
and perhaps too of his co-owners, the profit likely to arise to this
man, who is stated to have conductecf himsélf: in the most ex-
emplary manner; but when we talk of motives, 1 may retort
and ask what motive had my client ? Had he not a large share in
this coneern amounting to between five and sixX hundred pounds ?
Had he nat future rospects fo keep In view 2. fmd IS it not
natural to suppose, that a man who had never offended at any
period before in his situation, and wht_) should be interested in
gﬁtﬂ ‘a ship, would stoop to his superior officer as much as he
could? But what was he to do in this respect, when he was told
by this Captain Skelton, « Not to be sulky,” and found himself
treated with low, scurrilous, and irritating lan%uage? This is a
case, gentlemen, which has occupied a considerable length of
time already, and I'll not lengthen it with further observations ;
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the period has at: length arrived in which my elient has his
consolation; by an appeal to English jurymen to render him that
justice which his injuries require at your hands; and 1 have no
doubt that you will render them amply, according to the eir-
cumstances of the case ; more than ¢kat he does not ask, *

—— @

~BureNsorovew, C. J, Gentlemen of the jury; this is an
action brought by John Carter, who was lately chiet mate of the
Albion, a South Sea whaler, against Philip Skelton, who was
lately captain and commander of that vesseE and the complaint
which the plaintiff makes is, that he was, by this defendant, put
out of the service of this ship as mate, and prevented completing
his voyage in the said ship, wherein he would have earned one
38th part of the proceeds of the adventure by that ship, which,
acording 'to the evidence, would have amounted to £5068. being
his share of the nett proceeds, which are stated to have amountea
to £16000; - That is one part of his complaint; and he also com-
plains that he has been tea ng > wages which
would have been due to him for this voyage, by perfecting this
contract with the owners; he has likewise sustained a further
wmjury, by being set on shore upon the island of Celebes, in the
ludian Ocean; and obliged to find his way, with great inconve-
nience, and considerable additional expence, to Europe. That
1¢ the nature of the cause, and it is neither an unimportant one
as between those two parties, nor is it unimportant as to the
public. - You are to watch over the rights, both of the superior
and the inferior, so as to prevent insubordination, and to secure
obedience upon the one side, and to afiord the means of redress

to the persen who may be injured by any undue exersise of
authority, and give him what may be thought an adequate re-
compence.. The evidence in this case commenced with a state-
ment of the duties devolving upon each of these parties, in the
situations they held, relative to each other, by means of articles,
which were entered into and which have been read; by these
articles the plaintiff is to obey the orders and commands of his
superior officer, and to conduet himself upon all times and
occasions, and in all ports and places where the ship or vessel
shall ‘touch at, with sobriety, as a good and faithful seaman
ought to do. By these articles, the mate 1s to conduct himself
in ohedience to the captain of the vessel ; but even in the most
strict obedience that can be required, there may be ‘certain
orders which may be improper, or relate to things imPosg%bfe to
be performed, or if they be not given so peremptorily as they
ought to be under certain eircumstances which may seem to
justify a temporary departure from them. Itis for you, however,
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fo say, whether by such a departure within the fair sense and
meaning of the articles, which have been entered into, the
plaintiff has incurred so great a penalty as to forfeit not only his
share of the proceeds. of this adventure, but also his wages,
Now, in this case, the order given by the captain to tow up a
stoven boat on the starboard side of the vessel, was not literally
obeyed by the plaintiff, although it is said the man who had got
the order announced it to him a quarter of an hour before he
came up in his boat to the vessel. When the man.came up to
him to assist him with the stoved boat, and to communicate the
captairi’s order, the plaintiff says, he does not want his assistance
nor that of the captain, and got to the larboard side, stead of
the starboard side as was intimated to be the captain’s desire,
That is literally a disobedience, but the question. is, whether
under the galling sufferings which the plamtiff had endured,
(for I cannot hold them so light as not te notice them) this per~
son having been actually up to the shoulders in water for up-
wards of two hours in a stoven boat ; for certainly, 1 conceive,
that no human person can hold that circumstance light, when
estimating the sufferings of another, he, the plaintiff, must have
apprebended that by taking that side of the vessel which was
pointed out to him it would make him somewhat later in getting
on board, for we are not to suppose that he could have a
voluntary appetite for disobedience. His only object must
have been to get on board earlier than he cou{d have got by
going to the starboard side, for one cannot assign any other
motive for his conduct, and what makes it reasonable to sup-
pose so, is the sort of langunage which bhas been stated by two
witnesses, who confirmed the evidence of the boy in this parti-
cular, as to what passed between these parties upon that occas
sion, namely, that when the captain asked Carter why he did
not come on board on the starboard side, he, Carter, answered
« that he had been long enough in the water;” another witness
was asked as to whether he heard the words which the other
had said, and he stated that the captain, when Carter came on
board in the dusk, said “ dont be so sulky ;” now that imports
that something had passed that induced that demeanor before,
and when he was asked did you hear any such words as these
pass, namely, ¢ that he was glad to get on board any way, as he
““ had been long enough in the water,” he confirmed the former
statement. At last we came to tbe point in question, and from
what the captains (who have been examined to day) have said,
we may suppose that it might have heen more expedient for the
stoven boat to have been got up upon the starboard rather than
the l‘arboarafgide,_and that the captain gave the order for the
best ; but then again, this man having been employed all day in
execufion of the business of the ship, and having caught ope
fish, and having harpeoned another, and having in the execu-
tion of that duty encountered the accident which has been
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stated, he might naturally have expected a conduct and treat-
ment a little more lenient from his captain than that of being
questioned as he was, as to * his being sulky.” Upon the other
speaking to him as he did, 1t does not appear from whom the
next angry words proceeded, as the witnesses contradict each’
other, but the witness, Davis, stated ¢ that there was no incon-
“ venience to the people in the ship on which ever side they got
“ on board of her; the inconveniece would be to the persons
¢ getting out of the boat into the ship, the lee side being the
“ most convenient, On Carter coming on board, the captain
“ was very angry, and words ensued, because the boat did not
" %o round to the windward ; after some time the captain took
 him by the collar, and Carter pushed him away, and he said,
“ don’t go to heave me overboard as you did the steward. The
¢ captain told him to go below, and that he should not do any
“more duty on board the vessel§ nothing further passed ;
“ Carter went below, and remained in his cabin until we got
““into port,” 1If the others be speaking the truth in stating that
Carter, after this, still continued to eome on deck, it marks
strongly that there was no actual danger in his being on boeard ;
and if so, the captiin could not be justified in rogarding him as
a dangerous person, for if he had had any reason for entertain-
ing that idea he would have confined him to his ecabin, and if
there were not that reason, what pretence could he have for
ﬁutting him upon the island of Celebes, and leaving hiin there #
e might still have continued on board, as he was allowed ta
come on deck. After being irritated (as a powerful man might
be supposed to be provoked to use his strength when shaken
by the collar in an ignominious manner before all the ship’s
company) we find that he never raised his hand to strike the
defendant, but he only used his strength against such treatment,
o as to get rid of him who so held him ; I think it appears that
he, Carter, was a person capable of good order and sobriety,
and that there was no danger likely to arise from his continuing
on board, and that there was no just cause for the captain’s
apprehensions. I should think from the evidence, that the
plaintiff, in general, had confined himself below, although he
did sometimes come upon deck, A witness says, “the captain
“broke up his voyage, and ceased his fishing for a time, and
% came to the islancf' of Celebes;” and how is the plaintiff treated
' there? The captain goes on shore, and soon afterwards there
was a letter sent to the plaintiff from the Dutch resident of the

island, to whom Captain Skelton had applied, and stated his
case before the plaintiff had an opportunity of stating any thing,
‘and had desired the resident to send this letter, which certamly
iis not one which contains any thing violent, but it was not con-
' ceived in terms 80 as to induce him to suppose he was to be
made a prisoner, it merely desiring him to wait upon him, the
resident, as soon as he could; it was to this effect, *to Mr.



65

“ John Carter, chief officer of the Albion whaler. Sir, in conse-
“ quence of a public representation made unto me by the cap-
“tain of the ship Al_bicm, Philip Skelton, T have to request that
“ you will, with as llttl'e delay as possible, wait upon me.” This
is signed H. Neys, resident, and is dated Kenia, 9th Dee. 1812.
Carter accordingly waits upon him, but previously doubting
whether he should go upon this sort of invitation, i:e refers to
Underwood, the second mate, and says to him, as you are now
in command, would you advise me to go, and he, after some
hesitation, so advises him. There is a subsequent order that
Carter should not bz permitted to come on board agam. Where
was he sent? to an island very unfrequently visited by Euro-
pean ships, and therefore there was in general very little oppor-
tunity afforded him of escaping from it. Then it appears that
Captain Whittens was requested by the defendant to offer him
a passage to England, and this Captain Whittens agreed to do,
and his ship the Echo arrived on August 13th; this would have
at least secured him a conveyance; now ought Mr. Carter to
have accepted this offer or not? Put it, gentlemen, as your
own case ; in the first place it would have been a surrender of
his command, and an yielding up of his own rights, and might
have been subsequently accounted a satisfaction for those inju-
- ries he had sustained, as it might have been said, that he had
received that benefit of a passage in satisfaction of his demands.

Mr. PArk. Itis part of the special damage that he could
not procure a passage to Europe,

ErLenBoroven, C.J. He could have had a passage no
doubt upon that occasion, but then it would have been under
circumstances of disadvantage ; but can you say, that because a
man under such circumstances could have had a passage, it
would not have been tendering him that which would have been

a compromise of those rights which he claims in this cause 2
He might indeed have abridged the period of his detention and
delay of getting from that island, by accepting that offer of a
passage, %ut still he could not procure such a é)as:s_age as a man
mm common prudence and duty to himself would think of accept-
ing, for he might say, “if I go on board that other ship, and
“take that passage which has been procured me by the man
“who did me the injury of which I complain, it may be con-
“ strued into a comprﬂmise of the iﬂ.]lll'leﬂ which I have SUS~
“tained.” It is for him to pause and think whether he would
accept of that offer made him by the captain, or take his chance
‘of his coming to England as he best could, looking to his adop-
tion of some subsequent means of tig;c'ettin;f__w; pecuniary recompence
for the injuries done him. Then the captain offers to defray the
expences of his getting to England by some other means,

namely, by depositing a sum 'i;’lth the governor to procure a
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passage from Celebes to Amboyna, and thence to England, and
also to pay the expences of his maintenance ; the Dutch gover-
nor says “you need not do that, as he may mess with me while
“ he stays here.” That might be the means of enabling him to
pay his immediate expences, but really feeling as a man op-
pressed he might be supposed to say to himself ¢ shall I receive
“ meat and drink as a boon from this man? No, he has first
“ injured me, and then places me here as a charge upon the
“ Dutch governor ; he has placed me in astate of nature to find
“my way home as I best’can; I shall not receive this as a boon.”
Now, gentlemen, I really don’t know that he was bound to
accept this offer of his bounty, or any partial compensation for
that injury which was offered, if one thinks that he ought at all
to receive any compensation for such injuries from the party
who had so injured him ; besides, we don’t know whether he
would have left an adequate sum to defray even his expences
~home; all that we know is, that he had placed him in a situ-
2tion to get home as he. best could; it was no recompence to
him to be placed so as to have nothing to depend upon but
‘this broken reed. If you be of this opinion I need not detail
the whole _Gf, the_ QYidﬁHCEp as the witnesses on both sides dﬂ not
differ much in the circumstances which they state ; it appears
- {from the evidence of all the witnesses who have been cross
examined, that there was no great blame attaching to this
person for the disobedience of the literal order communicated
t0 him, under all the circumstances of the case, nor that the dis-
obedience was such as could be deemed contumacious or mis-
chevious to the service. Do not understand me to say that the
person who receives an order from his superior is to be weigh-
g in all cases the propriety of it ; obedience is a duty which
an inferior owes to a superior officer, and it would have been
perhaps better, had the plamtiff, in this instance, obeyed ; but
if you think that he was actuated in that disobedience by
motives of humanity, in endeavouring to save six lives, which
were of more consequeuce surely than the boat itself, and all
the whales they had got, and that he thought the object in view
could be better accomplished by going upon the larboard side
than by going on the starboard side, to a man whose life was
1 some ﬁegree of peril, although the other seemed to hold it
light, you will be 1nclined to excuse a litile degree of irrita-
tion 3 in such cases we are men, snbject to 'l}l,m_an mfirmities
and weakuesses, and it might be that the plaintiff felt a deep
sense of his suffering, both previously to his coming on board
and when so addressed by the defeudant, for, upon that occa-
sion, language certainly proceeded from the captain, which was
most unfit for a person in his situation ; anfl if you consider that
e pot only attacked him in words, but laid his hands upon his
mate, collared him, and called all hands on board to assist him,
and yet this man, Carter, so far collects himself in that predica-
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ment, in regard to prudence and reason, as hever fo raise his
hand against him ; you will think that as to the charge of perso-
nal violence, it rests upon the captain, unless you believe one of
the defendant’s witnesses, who talked of the plamtiff holding
the captain by the collar, but there is not one witness who states
that circamstance but himself; add to this, the captain after-
wards talks of “ pistols,” and then the plaintiff says, “ I have
“ pistols too ;” this may have been an improper reply, but much
allowance is to be made for one situated as the plaintiff was
under such galling circumstances. Upon the whole, if you
think the plaimntiff has been guilty of any essential disobedience,
and such as would tend much to the injury of his employers,
without any justification, he must be mulcted of those wages,
and that sum which was stipulated by the articles which have
been stated ; but, if you think that it was in the moment of
irritation, and under circumstances which may have produced
that irritation, he ought not to have been landed at Celebes, and
left to find his way to Amboyna, and thence home, or to have
been precluded altogether from the means of returning to
Europe, on board of that ship, and receiving his wages at the
end of that voyage, then, at least, he ought to have those ex-

pences which he has been %ut to, in order to be reconveyed
from that unfortunate habitation. These are the questions

which are left for your consideration : if you think he has been
guilty of a breach of the articles entered into, and that under
circumstances which rendered his conduct inexcusable, then you
will find for the defendant ; but if you find that he conducted
himself with sobriety, and as a faithful mariner, in the terms of
that agreement, and that the disobedience on this occasion was
such as, under the circumstances of the case, was owing to the
irritation he received, first from his sufferings from the accident
that had happened, and next by the language used to him by
the defendant, and as such excusable, you will ﬁnd_ the Ver(!wt
for the plaintiff’; but even although you do not think the diso-
bedience inexcusable, still there is that ulterior consideration,
whether it were excusable in the captain leaving him in that
inhospitable and uncomfortable island, and in that case you
will consider 'whether this’ conduct, on the part of the captain
to the mate, is to deprive him of his wages, and whether the
means which the captain subsequently offered to the mate to
convey him to this country, were means which he ought to have
accepted, but which he thought himsell imr}ly justified in refu-
sing, even although no other means offered at the time by
which a passage could be procured. Gentlemen, you will

please consider your verdict.

o
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